
City of Prince Rupert 

AGENDA 

For the COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING of Council to be held on June 24, 
2019 at 7:00p.m. in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 424- 3rd Avenue West, Prince Rupert, 
B.C. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

Recommendation: 
THAT the Agenda for the Committee of the Whole Meeting of 1 une 24, 2019 be adopted 
as circulated. 

3. PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS 

a) Rodrigo Samayoa, Fresh Voices - Re: Lost Votes Initiative. 

b) Richard Haley, Director; Bill Nicholls, Director; and, Tamar O'Rear, Facility 
Manager, Prince Rupert Racquet Association - Re: Update. 

c) City Manager- Re: 2018 Annual Report. 

4. QUESTION PERIOD FROM THE PUBLIC 

5. REPORTS, QUESTIONS AND INQUIRIES FROM MEMBERS OF COUNCIL 

6. ADJOURNMENT TO RECONVENE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
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Rose Balderson 

Subject: FW: June 24, 2019 Presenting to Council in - Lost Votes Initiative 

From: Rodrigo Samayoa [mailto:jorosafi@gmail.com] 
Sent: Saturday, May 25, 2019 9:16 PM 
To: City Hall <cityhall@princerupert.ca> 
Subject: Presenting to Council in June 

To the Prince Rupert Mayor and Council, 

This letter to is to request an opportunity to present to the Prince Rupert city council about the Lost Votes initiative 
to give permanent residents the right to vote in municipal elections. 

I am a Prince Rupert resident worki ng w ith a number of people across the province calling on municipalities to 
endorse a resolution at the UBCM in favour of granting permanent residents the right to vote in municipal elections. 

I have already sent information about this to all the Councillors and the Mayor and have met with a couple of them 
about this . I would like an opportunity to forma lly present this in front of the entire council. 

I would like to speak during one of the June council meetings, if possible. 

Please let me know if you need any further info rmation from me. 

Sincerely, 

Rodrigo Samayoa 

778-870- 196 1 

301-775 Drake Crescent, 

Prince Rupert BC 

V8J4K3 

This message and any attachments may contain confidential and privileged in formation. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please notify the sender immediately by telephone and destroy any copies . Any dissemination or use of this 
information by a person other than the intended recipient is unauthorized and may be illegal. Thank you. 

This message and any attachments may contain confidenti al and privileged information. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please notify the sender immediately by telephone and destroy any copies. Any dissemination or use of thi s 
information by a person other than the intended recipient is unauthorized and may be illegal. Thank you. 

1 
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Rose Balderson 

Subject: FW: June 24, 2019 Presenting to Council in - Lost Votes Initiative 

From: Rodrigo Samayoa [mailto: jorosafi@gmail.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, June 12, 2019 4:53 PM 

To: Rose Ba lderson <Rose.Balderson@princerupert.ca> 
Subject: Re: FW: Presenting to Council in June- Lost Votes Initiative 

Hi Rose, 
Apologies for my slow response. 
I plan on presenting alone without a power point presentation. 
I have copied the email I sent to the city Councillors below along with some attachments with details of the province

wide initiative. 
I hope I can speak at the next council meeting at the end of 1 une. 

Best 

Rodrigo Samayoa 

Dear Councillor Mirau, 

My name i Rodrigo Samayoa. I am reaching out to you about an initiative I had spoken to Councillor Randhawa 
about before. He told me he brought this up with the rest of council and he requested that I send more information to 
the Mayor and Counci l. 

The initiative in question is one led by Fresh Voices, a group that aims to engage immigrant and refugee youth into 
their local communities. They are pushing for a provincial legislative change to allow permanent residents to vote in 
municipal elections. 

To achieve this, there will be a resolution at the next UBCM in September that wi ll call on the provincial government 
to make the necessary legislative changes to make this a reality. Ahead of the convention, they are getting 
municipalities to pass local resolutions in support of this initiative. 

So far, Vancouver, New Westminster, Port Moody, Victori a and A VICC (Assoc. of Vancouver Island Communities) 
have all passed resolutions in support. As someone living in the North, I would like to see some Northern communities 
join these municipalities and it would be great for Prince Rupert to be the fi rst one to pass a resolut ion in support. 

Allowing permanent residents to vote in municipal elections is about increasing inclusivity in our communi ties and 
advancing democracy. This is already happening in 45 countries across the world, and being pu hed for in 13 
municipalitie in Canada. 

According to the last census, there are at least I ,600 Prince Rupert residents who are immigrants, many of whom are 
permanent residents of voting age. Giving us a say in municipal politics can help increase the sense of belonging and 
the civic engagement of immigrant populations. This is especially important when we consider that just over 32% of 
eligible voters cast a ballot during the last municipal election in October of2018. 

If you would like to talk more about thi s, I would be more than happy to hop on a call or go meet with you in person. 
I wi ll also ask the city manager to add this to a future counci l meeting agenda so I can present in front of council. 

1 
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In the meantime, I have attached public opinion research results that were conducted in the lower mainland as well as 
the motions put forth by New Westminster, Port Moody and A VICC (pg. 4 in the attached document) in support of the 
campaign as an example. 

My phone number is 778-870-1961 if you'd like to chat about this over the phone. 

Sincerely, 

Rodrigo Samayoa 

2 
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GIVE PERMANENT RESIDENTS A VOICE 

#LostVotes Campaign Fact Sheet 

About Lost Votes Campaign 

In the last 150 yea rs, electoral system in Canada has changed to give women, Chinese, East 
Indian, Japanese, and Indigenous people right to vote. #lostVotes is a campaign to secure the 
ability for permanent residents to vote in municipal elections and make local government 
inclusive to everyone who lives in BC cities. 

As an example, approximately 60,000 permanent residents live in Vancouver. They live here, 
work here, pay taxes and send their kids to schools. In Vancouver, that's equivalent to missing 
33% of voters. This situation repeats itself in other BC communities. 

Permanent residents (PR) share the sa me responsibilities as citizens. Yet despite their 
contributions to their cities, they are left without a voice and representation. 

B.C. Government has jurisdiction over municipal voting laws and set the parameters that 
govern them. 

Campaign Wins around BC 

• Lower Mainland Local Government Association of BC (including 33 municipali ties and 
regional districts) passed a motion to bring the issue to Union of BC Municipalities 
Convention to request the provincial government to allow permanent residents the 
right to vote in municipal elections. 

• On April18, 2018 Vancouver City Council unanimously passed a motion to request the 
provincial government to allow permanent residents the right to vote in municipal 

elections. 
• Vancouver Labour District Council endorsed the #LostVotes Campaign. 
• City of Port Moody unanimously passed a motion in support of the campaign to make a 

request to the BC government. 
• City of New Westminster unanimously passed a motion to requ est BC government to 

allow PR to vote. 
• City of Victoria passed a motion to allow permanent residents the right to vote in 

municipal elections. 
• Association of Vancouver Island and Coastal Communities (including 53 municipalit ies 

and regional districts) passed a motion to bring the issue to Union of BC Municipalities 
Convention to request the provincial government to allow permanent residents the 
right to vote in municipal elections. 
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liVE PERMANENT RESIDENTS ' VOICE 

Fact Sheet: Results from Public Opinion Research 

Majorities of Metro Vancouverites support allowing permanent residents to vote, a new 

Research Co. poll has found. 

In an online survey of a representative sample of Metro Vancouverites, 61% of respondents support 
allowing permanent residents to vote in municipal elections. 

A Permanent Resident is someone who has been given permanent resident status by immigrating to 
Canada, but is not a Canadian citizen . Every five years, Permanent Residents need to renew their status 
and are required to live in Canada a minimum of two years within each five-year period. 

In Canada, Permanent Residents are eligible for most social benefits that Canadian citizens receive 
(including health care coverage), can live, work or study anywhere in Canada, and are protected under 
Canadian law and the Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms. Permanent Residents must pay taxes 
and respect all Canadian laws at the federal, provincial and municipal levels. 

A sizeable proportion of Metro Vancouverites (84%) describe Permanent Residents as "valuable, 
contributing members to society" in their municipality. 

At least seven-in-ten Metro Vancouverites ... 

... supportive of allowing Permanent Residents, who contribute to society by working, living and 
paying taxes here, to vote in municipal elections 

... believe it makes sense to allow Permanent Residents to vote, in order to support them to be 
active citize ns when they are granted status as Canadian citizens 

... say it is important to them that any given members of the community, including Permanent 
Residents, have a democratic right to participate. 

Three-in-five Metro Vancouverites (60%) think allowing Permanent Residents to vote will strengthen 

democracy at the municipal level. 

Methodology: Results ore based on on online study conducted from September 4 to September 7, 2018, 
among 829 adults in Metro Vancouver. The data has been statistically weighted according to Canadian 
census figures for age, gender and region in Metro Vancouver. The margin of error-which measures 
sample variability-is+/- 3.5 percentage points, nineteen times out of twenty. 
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I NEW BlJSIN.ESS 

29. Notice of Motion: Fresh Voices #LostVotes Campaign .. Councillor Nakagawa 

Be it resolved that a letter be sent by the Mayor on behalf of the City of 
New Westminster to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing in 
support of the Fresh Voices campaign to allow Permanent Residents to vote 
in BC municipal elections; and 

That the following resolution regarding support for the Fresh Voices 
campaign be endorsed by the City of New Westminster and forwarded for 
consideration at the 20 18 LMLGA convention and the subsequent UBCM 
convention: 

Whereas the Province of British Columbia has the governing authority to 
implement electoral legislative changes including allowing for Permanent 
Residents to vote in municipal elections; and 

Whereas more than 45 countries have granted Permanent Residents some 
form of voting rights - including seven jurisdictions in the U.S. and 25 
European Union countries; and 11 municipalities in Canada are working 
toward extending local election voting rights to Permanent Residents; 

Be it resolved that the Union ofBC Municipalities request the Province of 
British Columbia make the necessary changes to allow Permanent 
Residents to vote in municipal elections in municipalities in British 
Columbia. 

January 282 2019 

An Open Council Workshop will be held which begins at 12:00 p.m. Following that, a 
Regular meeting will convene at 2 p.m. and immediately adjourn to a Closed meeting. 
There will be a Public Hearing at 6:00p.m., and immediately following the Public 
Hearing, the Regular meeting will reconvene. All meetings, including the Hearing, will 
be held in the Council Chamber on the 2nd Floor at City Hall. 

I·ADJO~NT···· .... , : . 

.. I 

January 14, 2019 
Doc # 1335487 

Regular Counci I Agenda Page6 
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Council Agenda Information 
[g) Regular Council December 04, 2018 

City of Port Moody 
Report/Recommendation to Council 

Date: November 23, 2018 File No. 01-0230-40Nol 01 

Submitted by: Councillor Amy Lubik 

Subject: Support for the Fresh Voices Campaign 

Purpose I Introduction 
To seek Council support for the Fresh Voices Campaign to allow Permanent Residents to vote 
in BC municipal elections. 

Recommended Resolutions 

THAT a letter to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing regarding support for the 
Fresh Voices campaign to allow Permanent Residents to vote in BC municipal elections 
be sent by the Mayor on behalf of the City of Port Moody as recommended in the report 
dated November 23, 2018 from Councillor Amy Lubik regarding support for the Fresh 
Voices Campaign; 

AND THAT the following resolution regarding support for the Fresh Voices campaign be 
endorsed by the City of Port Moody and forwarded for consideration at the 2018 LMLGA 
convention and the subsequent UBCM convention: 

WHEREAS the Province of British Columbia has the governing authority to 
implement electoral legislative changes including allowing for Permanent 
Residents to vote in municipal elections; 

AND WHEREAS more than 45 countries have granted Permanent Residents some 
form of voting rights- including seven jurisdictions in the U.S. and 25 European 
Union countries; and 11 municipalities in Canada are working toward extending 
local election voting rights to Permanent Residents; 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Province of British Columbia to make 
the necessary changes to allow Permanent Residents to vote in municipal 
elections in Port Moody and other municipalities. 

Background 
Currently, Permanent Residents are not able to vote in municipal elections, despite living, 
working, volunteering, and paying taxes in our communities. The Fresh Voices Campaign was 
started by young immigrants to increase inclusion for young newcomers and allow municipal 
voting from Permanent Residents and was endorsed by the City of Vancouver in 2018. A 2017 

EDMS#451836 
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Report/Recommendation to Council 
Support for the Fresh Voices Campaign 
November 23, 2018 

motion from City Council of Vancouver asking city staff to investigate this matter determined that 
the provincial government is the appropriate authority to undertake this work; therefore, 
municipalities must ask the provincial government to support this change. Allowing Permanent 
Residents to vote is an important step in making newcomers to Canada feel welcome as a part 
of our community. With the increasing disunity in the world, this is an opportunity to embrace 
our neighbours from other countries and grow a welcoming society. 

Discussion 
A Permanent Resident is someone who has been given permanent residence status by 
immigrating to Canada as a skilled worker, refugee, caregiver, or sponsored family member, but 
is not a Canadian citizen. Every five years, Permanent Residents need to renew their status 
and are required to live in Canada a minimum of two years within each five-year period. 
According to Immigrant, Refugees, and Citizenship Canada, in 2016 there were 8,725 
Immigrants and Permanent Residents living in Port Moody, approximately 60o/o of whom were of 
voting age, but who did not get a voice in the municipal election. 

Fresh Voices is a Vancouver-based group which does public engagement, research, and 
partnership-building work to improve the experience of newcomer youth in BC and make their 
voices heard. Recently, they brought forward a motion to Vancouver City Council to give the 
right to vote to Permanent Residents of Canada, at least in the Vancouver municipal elections. 
That motion passed unanimously and has been sent to the BC government to see if they will 
allow it. At the time of writing this report, there are 11 other municipalities in Canada that are 
considering such a move. In fact, approximately 45 countries include Permanent Residents in 
their electoral processes. 

There are many engaged and informed people who are on their way to citizenship, but are not 
there yet, in our community. Some residents may live here for decades but are not able to hold 
dual citizenship because their home country frowns upon it. Many of these people are 
concerned about making our society and world a better place and are involved in the 
community-sometimes because they come from a place that does not let them get involved 
without fear of oppression, and sometimes just because they are passionate about something. 

Approximately 57o/o of those polled in Vancouver were either moderately or strongly in favour of 
allowing Permanent Residents to vote in elections (Research Co., 400 people polled). 
Research from the Vancouver Foundation shows that of the 839 people polled: 

• a sizeable proportion of Metro Vancouverites (84°/o) describe Permanent Residents as 
''valuable, contributing members to society'' in their municipality; 

• at least seven-in-ten Metro Vancouverites believe it makes sense to allow Permanent 
Residents, who contribute to society by working, living, and paying taxes here, to vote in 
municipal elections (73°/o), believe it makes sense to allow Permanent Residents to vote 
in order to support them to be active citizens when they are granted status as Canadian 
citizens (73°/o), and say it is important to them that any given members of the 
community, including Permanent Residents, have a democratic right to participate 
(70o/o); and 

EDMS#451836 2 
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Report/Recommendation to Council 
Support for the Fresh Voices Campaign 
November 23, 2018 

• three-in-five Metro Vancouverites (60°/o) think allowing Permanent Residents to vote will 
strengthen democracy at the municipal level. 

Further, there is research showing that immigration and permanent residents enrich the 
economy of BC and Canada. For example, people often come to Canada when they are 
younger, shifting the balancing of the work force and contributing to the tax base to support 
Canada's aging population. Immigrants also often arrive with skills and education, and there is 
a positive correlation with innovation and entrepreneurship. 

Save those indigenous to Canada, all people came to Canada from somewhere to make a 
home here. It makes sense that they have a voice in shaping municipalities where they are 
making their homes. Diversity and inclusion of other life experiences, cultures, and voices really 
is a key part of what Canada stands for. At a time when political engagement is quite low at 
every level, especially municipal, this is not only a way of telling Permanent Residents that their 
voices matter, but reminding those born in Canada that this is their right as well. 

As Vancouver Councillor Andrea Reimer said when interviewed, this would be a way for the city 
to say, "we see you, we acknowledge the contributions that you're making." 

"Diversity is reality, inclusion is a choice." 

Other Options 
THAT the report dated November 23, 2018 from Councillor Amy Lubik regarding Support for the 
Fresh Voices Campaign be received for information. 

Financial Implications 
There are no financial implications associated with the recommendations in this report. 

Communications I Civic Engagement 
There are no communications or civic engagement initiatives required by the recommendations 
in this report. 

Council Strategic Plan Objectives 
Supporting the Fresh Voices Campaign aligns with the Council Strategic plan value of bridging 
community engagement to action. 

Attachment: 
1. Public Opinion Research on Permanent Resident Voting. 

EDMS#451836 3 
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Report/Recommendation to Council 
Support for the Fresh Voices Campaign 
November 23, 2018 

Additional References: 
http://tricitieslip.ca/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/Port-Moody-lmmiqrant-Demographic-Profile-
2018.pdf 

http://www.freshvoices.ca 

https :/ /www. th estar .com/vancouver/20 18/05/08/majority-of -vancouve rites-say-permanent
residents-should-have-right-to-vote-in-city-elections-poll.html 

http://www. immiqration.ca/assessing-economic-impact-miqration/ 

EDMS#451836 4 
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Report/Recommendation to Council 
Support for the Fresh Voices Campaign 
November 23,2018 

Prepared by: 

Amy Lubik 

Councillor 

EDMS#451836 5 
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2019 RESOLUTIONS 

PART ER- EXECUTIVE RESOLUTIONS 

ERl) AVICC Special Committee on Solid Waste Management AVICC Executive 

WHEREAS the Association of Vancouver Island and Coastal Communities' (AVICC) Special Committee 
on Solid Waste Management, with representatives from nine regional districts, was formed in 2015 to 
research, prepare and present the findings and recommendations to the 2016 convention on this 
mandated service; 

AND WHEREAS the Special Committee reported out to the AVICC membership at the 2016, 2017 and 
2018 conventions, the membership endorsed the action plans and further directed the Special 
Committee to report back to the 2019 convention with outcomes; 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the AVICC endorses and supports the Special Committee's vision 
and goals as: 

Vision: 
That local governments on Vancouver Island, qathet and the Sunshine Coast are working together to 
address the opportunities and challenges of managing solid waste and our residents are aware of; 
support the need to reduce and manage our waste in a sustainable manner; and to work toward 
achieving zero-waste in our communities. 

Goals: 
1. Ensure information is sha red between AVICC local governments to encourage best 

practices and common solutions in sol id waste management and consistent messaging to 
our residents. 

2. Collect and maintain appropriate and consistent data associated with solid waste 
management within the AVICC. 

3. Support an informed and unified voice to assist efforts with the Province, NGOs and other 
partners in developing effective waste management solutions and policies. 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the AVICC endorses and supports the continuation of the 
Special Committee on Solid Waste Management with areas of work focused on: Organics 
Management, Long-Term Disposal Options, and Single-Use Plastics; 

AND FINALLY THAT regional district staff continue to discuss opportunities for collaboration and 
alignment related to those areas of work in the following areas: 

1. Communication and Outreach 
2. Mandatory Source Separation 
3. Solid Waste Comparative Data 
4. Disposal Bans 
5. Varying Tipping Fees 
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6. Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR}, and 
7. Solid Waste Advanced Technologies 

ON MOTION, as amended, was ENDORSED 

PART 1-REFERRED RESOLUTIONS 
The following resolutions were referred to the Association by UBCM following the 2018 UBCM Annual 

Convention. 

ENVIRONMENT 

RR1) BC-Wide 100% Renewable Energy by 2050 Target (LR7) Township of Esquimalt 

WHEREAS all levels of government and society must be mobilized and coordinated to address the 
challenge of climate change; 

AND WHEREAS Esquimalt is a leader among BC communities in the adoption of sustainable practices: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that UBCM ask the Province to adopt a province-wide target to meet all 
energy needs with renewable energy by 2050. 

RESOLUTION WITHDRAWN 

RR2) Support Local Governments to Plan for 100% Renewable Energy (LRS) Township of Esquimalt 

WHEREAS all levels of government and society must be mobilized and coordinated to address the 
challenge of climate change; 

AND WHEREAS Esquimalt is a leader among BC communities in the adoption of sustainable practices: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that UBCM ask the Province to provide adequate resources and support 
to local governments to plan for, and implement, a target of using 100% renewable energy by 2050, 
or an equivalent GHG reduction target. 

RESOLUTION WITHDRAWN 

RR3) Transparent Criteria for "Green" Infrastructure Spending (LR9) Township of Esquimalt 

WHEREAS all levels of government and society must be mobilized and coordinated to address the 
challenge of climate change; 

AND WHEREAS Esquimalt is a leader among BC communities in the adoption of sustainable practices: 
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THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that UBCM ask the Province to implement transparent, objective and 
prioritized criteria for infrastructure spending that is allocated for climate action. 

RESOLUTION WITHDRAWN 

RR4) BC-Wide Energy Upgrade for Buildings (LRlO) Township of Esquimalt 

WHEREAS all levels of government and society must be mobilized and coordinated to address the 
challenge of climate change; 

AND WHEREAS Esquimalt is a leader among BC communities in the adoption of sustainable practices: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that UBCM ask the Province to commit to achieving a general upgrade to 
the energy performance of BC's existing building stock to be compatible with Be's and local 
governments' climate action commitments, including economic measures to encourage building 
owners to do building upgrades. 

RESOLUTION WITHDRAWN 

RRS) Integrated Transportation Planning for Climate Action (LR11) Township of Esquimalt 

WHEREAS all levels of government and society must be mobilized and coordinated to address the 
challenge of climate change; 

AND WHEREAS Esquimalt is a leader among BC communities in the adoption of sustainable practices: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that UBCM ask the Province, in consultation with local governments, to 
implement integrated planning for all modes of transportation that is consistent with Be's legislated 
greenhouse gas emission reduction targets and climate action goals. 

RESOLUTION WITHDRAWN 

TAXATION 

RR6) Modernization of Utility Taxation (LR6) District of Ucluelet 

WHEREAS Section 644(2) of the Local Government Act is intended to define the requirements of a 1 
per cent annual tax on utilities carrying on business in a municipality; 

AND WHEREAS utility company services have expanded beyond electrical light, electric power, 
telephone, water, gas or television services to include Internet and cellular services: 
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THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Province initiates the modernization of Section 644(2) of the 
Local Government Act to include Internet and cellular services. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

PART 2- RESOLUTIONS RECEIVED BY THE DEADLINE 
The following are the resolutions received by the February 7, 2019 resolutions deadline. Delegates 
will receive an Annual Report and Resolutions Book that will contain the Resolutions Committee's 
Comments and Recommendations. 

Part 2 - Section 11A" - This section contains resolutions that feature new issues of interest to all 
members. Resolutions are considered individually. 

ELECTIONS 

Rl) Allow Permanent Residents to Vote in Municipal Elections City of Victoria 

WHEREAS the Province of British Columbia has the governing authority to implement electoral 
legislative changes including allowing for Permanent Residents to vote in municipal elections; 

AND WHEREAS more than 45 countries have granted Permanent Residents some form of voting rights 
- including seven jurisdictions in the U.S. and 25 European Union countries; and 11 municipalities in 
Canada are working toward extending local election voting rights to Permanent Residents: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Province of British Columbia make the necessary changes to 
allow Permanent Residents to vote in municipal elections in Victoria and other municipalities and 
regional districts. 

ON MOTION, as amended, was ENDORSED 

R2) Youth Voting in Local Government Elections City of Victoria 

WHEREAS youth have a strong interest in the future of local communities; 

AND WHEREAS empowering young people to participate in democratic processes fosters ongoing and 
active civic participation: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Province of British Columbia revise the voting age for local 
government elections to 16 years of age. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 
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TRANSPORTATION 

R3) Vancouver Island Transportation Master Plan Nanaimo RD 

WHEREAS a Vancouver Island Transportation Master Plan would outline Inter-Regional necessary 
improvement to the Island transportation network; 

AND WHEREAS the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure has the ultimate responsibility for 
transportation planning on Vancouver Island: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Province of British Columbia prepare a Vancouver Island 
Transportation Master Plan. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R4) Traffic Calming Nanaimo RD 

WHEREAS regional district efforts to build more complete, compact communities within electoral 
areas have increased pedestrians and cyclists on roads in areas designated for growth; 

AND WHEREAS the safety of pedestrians and cyclists on roads in rural areas designated for growth 
would be enhanced with traffic calming measures designed to reduce vehicle speeds and prioritize 
non-motorized traffic: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Provincial Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure develop 
new criteria and standards for traffic calming in areas designated for growth in Electoral Areas. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

RS) Traffic Control and Enforcement on Rural Roads Nanaimo RD 

WHEREAS the Province and the RCMP have limited resources to regulate and enforce traffic 
regulations on Provincial roads in rural areas; 

AND WHEREAS the lack of visible presence and consistent enforcement of traffic regulations by the 
RCMP results in unchecked speeding, reckless driving, illegal parking and other unsafe conditions on 
rural roads: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Province of British Columbia increase resources for regulation 
and enforcement of traffic regulations on rural roads. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 



18

R6) Off-Road Vehicle (ORV) Management Framework Village of Sayward, 
Village of Tahsis 

WHEREAS the Off-Road Vehicle (ORV) Act was intended to create safe and more convenient 
incidental access to public roads and highways to better connect BC's rural communities and support 
a first-rate ORV trail network, and to allow local governments to expand their trail networks to take 
advantage of economic development opportunities by way of tourism; 

AND WHEREAS the current administrative process to obtain Operation Permits as permitted under 
the ORV Act is onerous and not conducive to convenient incidental access to trail networks 
connecting multiple communities as a separate operation permit must be obtained from each 
jurisdiction: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the following changes to legislation are made: 

• Only one (1) Operation Permit required for approved access to multiple jurisdictions 
and/or communities along a connecting designated ORV route and trail network issued 
in any of the jurisdictions or communities along the route. 

• Operation Permits can be issued by any local RCMP or local government along a 
designated route. 

• Operation Permit term extended from 2 years to 5 years to align with the driver's 
licence term. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R7) Support Transformational Improvements to Regional BC Transit City of Victoria 

WHEREAS the transportation sector is the second-largest contributor of GHG, some of the largest 
reductions in GHGs are possible through facilitating a mode shift to low carbon mobility options, such 
as increased ridership of emissions-free transit; 
AND WHEREAS transforming regional public transit could drastically increase mode-shift to clean 
public transit system: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Province of British Columbia and BC Transit take immediate 
actions to support and provide funding for transformational improvements to regional BC transit 
infrastructure to promote and enable rapid mode shift to transit, including transitioning the BC 
Transit fleet to zero emissions as early in the 2020s as possible. 

Amended to remove items 1 through 7. 

ON MOTION, as amended, was ENDORSED 
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RS) Revitalizing Island Rail City of Victoria 

WHEREAS one of the conditions of the original Order-in-Council establishing the Esquimalt and 
Nanaimo (E&N) now Island Corridor Foundation (ICF) railway corridor is that if the corridor is no 
longer needed or used for railway purposes, it goes back to the original owner and assembling a 
similar multi-modal corridor connecting the Alberni Inlet to the Comox Valley to Greater Victoria in 
the context of current land values and land uses would be impossible to replicate; 

AND WHEREAS repair of the railway infrastructure can only reasonably be accomplished by way of 
capital investment from senior levels of government, in co-operation with First Nations and local 
governments and respecting first nations interests, rail transport and a parallel trail system are 
integral sustainable transportation options for Indigenous and non-indigenous peoples in the context 
of climate change, including the option of electrified rail for the sustainable movement of people and 
goods on the island: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Province of British Columbia take immediate actions to provide 
sufficient funding in a timely manner to restore the railway infrastructure of Vancouver Island and 
ensure that the corridor remains intact and available to future generations of Indigenous and non
indigenous peoples. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

TAXATION 

R9) Property Taxation City of Nanaimo 

WHEREAS Section 193 of the Community Charter restricts a municipality from imposing fees or taxes 
except as expressly authorized under the Community Charter or another Act; 

AND WHEREAS urban sprawl creates higher infrastructure costs, transportation costs, and other 
expenses borne by society; 

AND WHEREAS municipalities attempt to control urban sprawl whilst encouraging healthier lifestyles 
and alternative modes of transportation: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the provincial government amend the Community Charter to allow 
municipalities to adjust their property tax rates by setting density brackets in their jurisdiction, to use 
at their discretion, as an incentive to reduce urban sprawl and as a method of assigning infrastructure 
and maintenance costs more accurately amongst end users. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 
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FINANCE 

RlO} Improvement District Governance Policy Nanaimo RD 

WHEREAS many improvement districts are wrestling with increased costs for replacing and improving 
water infrastructure, and in finding adequate sources of funding; 

AND WHEREAS the residents of improvement districts contribute tax monies to the provincial and 
federal governments: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Union of BC Municipalities work with the Province and the 
Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing to change the Improvement District Governance Policy to 
allow citizens residing in improvement districts equal access to provincial and federal infrastructure 
grant monies. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

Rll) Revenue Sharing District of Port Hardy 

WHEREAS small rural communities in British Columbia are surrounded by lands within Regional 
Districts governed by the Provincial Government that collect revenue from industry for resource 
extraction from the lands; 

AND WHEREAS the communities adjoining these lands provide services including parks, recreation 
and roads for the companies and employees and gain no apportionment of the revenue collected for 
providing these services: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Association of Vancouver Island and Coastal Communities lobby 
the Province of British Columbia to consider revenue sharing of royalties and taxes with 
municipalities that provide services to those industries benefitting from the services of the adjoining 
municipalities. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

ENVIRONMENT 

R12) Indoor Agricultural Fertilization Practices City of Nanaimo 

WHEREAS water sustainability, healthy watersheds and ground water are of vital importance and, 
commercial fertilizers can be damaging to groundwater and influence water quality in watersheds; 

AND WHEREAS the use of fertilizers in greenhouses and indoor structures creates effluent that 
contains concentrated commercial fertilizers which, if released untreated can be damaging to 
groundwater and the overall watershed: 
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THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the AVICC request that the provincial government explore including 
in the BC Agricultural Best Practices, the requirement for closed loop greenhouse irrigation systems in 
commercial greenhouse and indoor agricultural structures, to prevent commercial fertilizers from 
being emitted into the environment. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R13} Key Marine Cumulative Effects Values Islands Trust 

WHEREAS the Province of British Columbia has adopted the use of a cumulative effects framework to 
help identify and manage cumulative effects across the natural resource sector; 

AND WHEREAS the cumulative effects framework allows for the inclusion of marine values but the 
Province has not yet approved any marine values for cumulative effects assessment to inform 
decision making in coastal regions: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that UBCM request the provincial government to prioritize the approval 
of key marine cumulative effects values for long-term monitoring and cumulative effects assessments 
in coastal regions. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R14} Recreational Boating Access Infrastructure Township of Esquimalt 

WHEREAS recreational boating is part of the fabric of many BC communities, contributes to the 
quality of life and is an important economic and recreational activity; 

AND WHEREAS there is an ongoing decline in boating access infrastructure, and marinas and public 
boat launches are being removed to make way for development and community amenities: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that UBCM's coastal, riverfront and lakeshore member communities 
incorporate existing boating access infrastructure into community planning and identify areas in 
which there may be potential to add boating infrastructure to their longer-term community plans. 

ON MOTION, was not ENDORSED 

RlS} Groundwater Extraction Strathcona RD 

WHEREAS water is an essential resource upon which all life, including all ecosystems and all local 
communities depend; 

AND WHEREAS water is a public heritage and a public trust for present and future generations and 
access to water must not be compromised by commercial operations relating to commercial water 
bottling or commercial bulk water exports: 
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THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Premier of British Columbia and the Minister of Forests, Lands 
and Natural Resources Operations and Rural Development be requested to immediately cease the 
licensing and extraction of groundwater for commercial water bottling and/or bulk water exports 
from aquifers. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R16) Climate Emergency Declaration Sunshine Coast RD 

WHEREAS the impacts of climate change in the form of extreme weather events, wildfires and 
drought are occurring at an accelerated rate and with growing frequency throughout BC and are 
creating major financial, social and environmental costs which are largely being borne by local 
governments and the residents they serve; 

AND WHEREAS there is an urgency for action but a lack of resources and coordination to support 
local governments in their ability to adapt to and mitigate the ongoing effects of climate change, 
especially with respect to infrastructure upgrades, repairs and maintenance, and emergency 
preparedness measures: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the provincial government be urged to declare a province-wide 
Climate Emergency in order to emphasize the critical imperative for immediate action and to assist 
with province-wide collaboration and coordination of resources that will support local governments 
and communities in their ability to adapt and manage ongoing change. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R17) Recovering Municipal Costs Arising from Climate Change City of Victoria 

WHEREAS local governments are incurring substantial costs in relation to the impacts of climate 
change, including volatile weather patterns, drought, wildfires, erosion and other impacts; 

AND WHEREAS it is fiscally prudent to recover these costs from corporations that have profited from 
the burning of fossil fuels, with knowledge that these economic activities contribute to climate 
change: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that UBCM explore the initiation of a class action lawsuit on behalf of 
member local governments to recover costs arising from climate change from major fossil fuels 
corporations; 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Province of British Columbia consider legislation to support 
local governments in recovering costs arising from climate change from major fossil fuel corporations. 

ON MOTION, was not ENDORSED 
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R18} cave Protection Act Village of Ta hsis 

WHEREAS caves are uncommon and unique environments that can harbour rare and threatened 
species, unique mineralogy and sediments, First Nation heritage values; and are non-renewable, site
specific landscape features with natural, cultural, spiritual, aesthetic and scientific value; 

AND WHEREAS caves are sensitive ecosystems that can underlie developed landscapes and as such 
are vulnerable to pollution, destruction by quarrying, vandalism, mismanagement, species extinction 
and general degradation caused by human activities: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Provincial Government should pass a Cave Protection Act in 
order to conserve caves, in perpetuity. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R19} Shifting Investment to Low-Emission Transportation City of Victoria 

WHEREAS the Prime Minister of Canada and the Premiers of BC and most provinces signed the Pan
Canadian Framework on Clean Growth and Climate Change in 2016, endorsing a policy shift that 
could substantially reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) pollution from transportation while funding public 
transit improvements, including inter-city and commuter bus and rail service; 

AND WHEREAS the transportation sector is the second-largest contributor of GHG pollution in 
Canada, representing 23% of total emissions: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that local governments call on the Governments of Canada and British 
Columbia to fully implement their commitment in the Pan-Canadian Framework on Clean Growth and 
Climate Change, to shift investments "from higher to lower-emitting types of transportation". 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R20} Promoting and Enabling GHG Reductions City of Victoria 

WHEREAS the world's leading climate scientists have warned that we have less than 12 years to meet 
our climate targets, and early action is required to avoid significant costs and impacts to social and 
environmental well-being in our communities, and worldwide, local governments are uniquely 
positioned to enable this mobilisation effort, in a coordinated and integrated fashion across sectors, 
enabling individual action with timely and accurate information, incentives, directions, coordination, 
tools, targets and scalable, impactful programs; 

AND WHEREAS local governments GHG reduction plans will be effectively and expeditiously realised 
through a dedicated focus on cutting the most impactful GHG sources, including: retrofitting existing 
buildings to high-efficiency standards; renewable electricity; elimination of fossil fuel heating sources; 
shifting people to transit, active transportation, and renewably powered mobility options; and the 



24

electrification of commercial and passenger vehicle fleets, the complexity and pace/progress of GHG 
reductions in both local governments and community require additional resources and planning to 
reduce risks of missing interim and longer GHG and renewable energy targets: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that local governments call on the Governments of Canada and British 
Columbia to pursue the following immediate sector actions to promote and enable GHG reductions 
and realize important social and economic co-benefits: 

1. Make available aiiiCBC municipal vehicle km/make/model/fuel economy information. 

2. Continue the development and implementation of world-class low carbon fuel standards. 

3. Fully invest in delivery of the zero-emission vehicles sales targets as established in the 
CleanBC Plan. 

4. Continue progressive and direct funding programs and partnerships for municipal low
carbon initiatives, including building retrofit, transportation, waste management and other 
priority and shared GHG reduction programs. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

LAND USE 

R21) Cannabis and Farm Use Activities City of Nanaimo 

WHEREAS the Agricultural Land Commission Act states "farm use" means an occupation or use of 
land for farm purposes, including farming of land, plants and animals and any other similar activity 
designated as farm use by regulation, and includes a farm operation as defined in the Farm Practices 
Protection (Right to Farm) Act; 

AND WHEREAS the Agricultural Land Reserve Use, Subdivision and Procedure Regulation (the ALR 
Regulation) has differentiated the lawful production of cannabis from other "farm use" by limiting the 
structures for production, and narrowing the definition of 'necessary' activities under section 2(3), 
unlike any other crop in British Columbia: 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the AVICC request the provincial government to amend the ALR 
Regulation so that the lawful production of cannabis aligns with the growing structures and site 
development measures available for all other crops. More specifically, placing limits on the unique 
concrete structure growing method initially targeted for regulation to all crops. Thus enabling 
cannabis, when grown as any other crop, to be deemed a "farm use", as defined in the Agricultural 
Land Commission Act and a "farm operation" under the Farm Practices Protection (Right to Farm) 
Act. Circumscribing cannabis production in structures that are lawful by regulation for all other crops, 
may not withstand judicial review. 

RESOLUTION WITHDRAWN 
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R22) Cannabis Plants on the Agricultural Land Reserve City of Nanaimo 

WHEREAS the Agricultural Land Commission Act states 11farm use .. means an occupation or use of 
land for farm purposes, including farming of land, plants and animals and any other similar activity 
designated as farm use by regulation, and includes a farm operation as defined in the Farm Practices 
Protection (Right to Farm) Act; 

AND WHEREAS the Agricultural Land Reserve Use, Subdivision and Procedure Regulation {the ALR 
Regulation) has differentiated the lawful production of cannabis from other "farm use" by limiting the 
structures for production, and narrowing the definition of 'necessary' activities under section 2(3), 
unlike any other crop in British Columbia: 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the AVICC request the provincial government to amend the ALR 
Regulation in order to clarify the interpretation of section 2{2.5) of the ALR Regulation regarding the 
lawful production of cannabis "inside a structure (a) that has a base consisting entirely of soil", and 
clarify that when producing cannabis in a greenhouse, it has the same meaning as "Greenhouse" 
under section 2(o)(i) of the Regulation. Circumscribing cannabis production in structures that are 
lawful by regulation for all other crops, may not withstand judicial review. 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the AVICC request the provincial government to amend the ALR 
Regulation section 2(2.5) to resemble something like the following: 

(2.5) The lawful production of cannabis is designated as farm use for the purposes of the Act if 
produced outdoors in a field or inside a structure 
(a) which has a base consisting entirely of soil, and 

(i) that is moveable in nature; or 
(ii) on a helical pile foundation; or 
(iii) whose base does not create irreversible damage to the soil. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R23) Low Impact Foundation Systems for Farm Use Structures City of Nanaimo 

WHEREAS the structural use of concrete as a foundation system and associated fill is known to cause 
irreparable damage to soil biology and render a site unfit for soil-based crops in the future, and low
impact, low carbon, removable foundation technologies are available as a new standard for 
agricultural structure foundations; 

AND WHEREAS the Agricultural Land Commission Act, and the Agricultural Land Reserve Use, 
Subdivision and Procedure Regulation (the ALR Regulation) regulate "farm use" structures on the 
agricultural land reserve (ALR) and the deposit of fill is considered a farm use for all activities under 
sections 2(1) to (2.2), and does not require notification to the ALR except under limited 
circumstances, and the National Farm Building Code applies to all agricultural"farm use" structures; 
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THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the AVICC request the provincial government to encourage the use 
of low carbon, low impact, cement-free foundation technologies for farm use structures and buildings 
within the ALR, thereby reducing the deposition of fill material and elimination of arable soil 
capability in the long term. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R24) Retrofitting of Structures to Reduce Impact of New Construction City of Nanaimo 

WHEREAS the Agricultural Land Commission Act, and the Agricultural Land Reserve Use, Subdivision 
and Procedure Regulation (the ALR Regulation) Section 2(2.5)(b) has limited cannabis production to 
existing structures which were previously utilized for crop production, or were under continuous 
production prior to the regulatory change, eliminating the ability to convert non-crop or other 
structures within the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR); 

AND WHEREAS the Cannabis Act and Regulations require "good production practices" that create 
hygienic conditions for the cultivation and production of cannabis, and existing structures are 
available for federally compliant conversion, which would strengthen municipal 2018 BC Building 
Code oversight, reduce the pressure for new construction, and facilitate contribution to the local and 
BC Economy: 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the AVICC request the provincial government to amend the ALR 
Regulation to allow for the retrofitting of existing non-residential structures on the ALR for cannabis 
production. 

ON MOTION, was not ENDORSED 

HEALTH 

R25) Canada Health Transfers Town of Qualicum Beach 

WHEREAS seniors account for 47% of Canada's healthcare spending while comprising 17% of our 
country's population; 

WHEREAS the next decade is set to see a 93-billion-dollar increase in healthcare spending in Canada 
as a result of our aging population; 

WHEREAS mid-island communities can expect per capita increases in healthcare costs owing to 
demographics in roughly the following amounts: Qualicum Beach: 77%, Parksville: 53%, Courtenay: 
19%, Nanaimo: 12.5%, and Campbell River: 7%; 

WHEREAS seniors comprise 52.1% of the population of Qualicum Beach and 23.3% of the population 
for Vancouver Island and the Coast; 
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WHEREAS demographic data was removed as a consideration for determining health transfer 
payment amounts by the federal government in 2012 and is presently not factored into health 
transfers, despite the fact there is a 444% variance in per capita healthcare spending on seniors 
relative to the rest of the population: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the AVICC lobby the provincial and federal ministries of health to 
have demographics included in determining each province's funding through Canada Health 
Transfers. 

ON MOTION, as amended, was ENDORSED 

R26} Safer Drug Supply to Save Lives City of Victoria 

WHEREAS It has been two years since B.C. declared a public-health emergency due to increased 
overdoses, yet the death toll for those consuming substances continues to rise due to an 
unpredictable and highly-toxic drug supply; 

AND WHEREAS people with opioid use disorder, a chronic relapsing medical condition, are at high risk 
of overdose-related harms including death and an estimated 42,200 people inject toxic substances in 
British Columbia, it is not possible for the treatment system to rapidly increase services fast enough 
to manage this number of people as "patients" within a medical treatment model given the many 
challenges in achieving and retaining the people on opioid use disorder treatment, people at risk of 
overdose in British Columbia do not have access to a safer alternative to the unpredictable, highly
toxic drug supply: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that in an effort to save lives and reduce harm due to an unpredictable 
and highly-toxic drug supply, and as part of a holistic response to the public-health emergency, 
including prevention, treatment, and recovery, that the Province of British Columbia work with local 
communities, Health Authorities across the Province, the Ministry of Mental Health and Addictions, 
and the Ministry of Health ensure that people at risk of overdose harm have access to safer 
alternatives. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R27) Observed Inhalation Sites for Overdose Prevention City of Victoria 

WHEREAS British Columbia is currently experiencing an unprecedented public health emergency due 
to an unpredictable and highly-toxic drug supply, and smoking or inhalation is the second most 
common mode of consumption among all people who have died from a suspected illicit drug 
overdose and the most common mode of consumption among men and those between the ages of 
15 and 29; 

AND WHEREAS observed consumption services (i.e. supervised consumption services and overdose 
prevention services) are evidence-based harm reduction approaches shown to reduce overdose-
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related harm, and there is not adequate access to observed consumption services that provide space 
for inhalation where communities are facing crisis: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT to ensure that people at risk of overdose across BC have access to 
observed consumption services that provide space for inhalation, that the Province of British 
Columbia fund and work through local communities, Health Authorities across the Province, the 
Ministry of Mental Health and Addictions and the Ministry of Health to provide these services as part 
of a holistic response to the public-health emergency, including prevention, treatment, and recovery. 

ON MOTION, as amended, was ENDORSED 

SELECTED ISSUES 

R28) Canada Post's Neighbourhood Mail District of Highlands 

WHEREAS Canada Post's Neighbourhood Mail (unaddressed bulk mail) was a cost effective program 
that allowed local governments and regional districts to mail notices to residents within their 
boundary; 

AND WHEREAS changes to the program now see unaddressed bulk mail going to "precision targeted 
areas" that are no longer aligned with local government and regional district boundaries; 

AND WHEREAS the changes result in properties outside of the local government rece1v1ng 
unaddressed bulk mail that are not relevant to them, and to higher costs for local governments and 
regional districts conducting these mail outs: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that AVICC and UBCM urge Canada Post to continue to allow 
neighbourhood mail (unaddressed bulk mail) to be delivered only to properties within the local 
government and regional district boundary. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R29) Review of Resolutions Procedures City of Campbell River 

WHEREAS the volume of resolutions admitted for debate from each area association, various local 
governments and the UBCM Executive, is excessive and does not provide time for wholesome debate 
on the UBCM convention floor; 

AND WHEREAS the vetting of resolutions is inadequate and leads to a lack of rational, structured 
arguments to present a compelling case for government to act: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that UBCM conduct a thorough audit and review of its resolutions 
procedures to ensure that the resolutions on the floor of the UBCM convention are reduced in 
number, repetition and are focused on priority use. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 
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Part 2 -Section "B"- Resolutions grouped to be considered as a block. 

This section contains resolutions that support existing UBCM policy, including: 
• Previously considered and endorsed resolutions; or 

• Resolutions in keeping with UBCM policy, including previously approved policy papers or other 
documents. 

LEGISLATIVE 

R30) Statutory Advertising Regulations District of Sooke 

WHEREAS many constituents are accessing community news and current events through daily and 
weekly online publications; 

AND WHEREAS municipalities should be free to advertise mandated notices additionally or 
exclusively in these daily and weekly online publications: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the definition of "Newspaper'' in section 29 of the Interpretation 
Act, section 29, be amended to include online publications including similar criteria related to content 
and publication intervals to print newspapers. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

TAXATION 

R31) Funding of Fire Halls and Public Safety Buildings Village of Cumberland 

WHEREAS community growth has direct impact on the provision of protective services and necessary 
infrastructure and apparatus, including fire halls and public safety buildings; 

AND WHEREAS there are currently limited funding sources, other than property value taxes, to fund 
upgrades and expansion of fire halls and public safety buildings: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Association of Vancouver Island and Coastal Communities AND 
the Union of BC Municipalities request that the Province of British Columbia amend the Local 
Government Act to allow development cost charges to be used for expansion of fire protection 
infrastructure. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R32) Extension of Vacancy Taxation Authority to Local Governments City of Victoria 

WHEREAS the Province of British Columbia responded to a housing affordability crisis in 2016 with 
legislation empowering the City of Vancouver to introduce a surtax on vacant residential properties, 
resulting in $38-million in revenues for that community in 2018 and creating a strong disincentive to 
leaving properties vacant; 
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AND WHEREAS communities across British Columbia face housing affordability pressures, while a 
portion of the housing supply in all communities remains vacant, including properties that have 
remained derelict for years or decades, and vacant and derelict buildings pose substantial risks in 
terms of public safety in communities, as well as liveability and desirability for nearby and adjoining 
neighbourhoods and properties: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Province of British Columbia extend the authority to introduce a 
surtax on vacant residential properties to local governments across British Columbia, providing 
communities with the discretion to decide whether to introduce an additional tax to discourage 
vacant and derelict buildings, and encourage the occupancy, maintenance, and improvement of 
buildings to address housing affordability and public safety. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

FINANCE 

R33) Development Cost Charges City of Nanaimo 

WHEREAS the Local Government Act currently restricts the imposition of Development Cost Charges 
to areas of sewage, water, drainage, highway facilities and park land; 

AND WHEREAS new development creates capital cost burdens on municipalities in other areas, such 
as emergency services, solid waste management, and recreational and cultural facilities: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Association of Vancouver Island and Coastal Communities and 
Union of BC Municipalities request the provincial government amend the Local Government Act to 
allow for the imposition of Development Cost Charges in areas other than sewage, water, drainage, 
highway facilities and park land. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R34) Property Transfer Tax Redistribution for Affordable Housing Comox Valley RD 

WHEREAS affordable housing for low-income citizens is in critical need and is currently severely 
challenged by current supply conditions and lack of adequate funding; 

AND WHEREAS the Province of British Columbia collects approximately $2 billion annually through 
the Property Transfer Tax: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the UBCM petition the Province of British Columbia to provide an 
annual redistribution of 1% of the Property Transfer Tax to local governments across the Province for 
the specific purpose of addressing affordable housing. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 
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R35) Share of Liquor Tax for Policing City of Courtenay 

WHEREAS the policing cost for the City of Courtenay is one of the most significant expenditures in the 
City's financial plan; 

AND WHEREAS the availability of alcohol under the jurisdiction of the B.C. Liquor & Cannabis 
Regulation Branch can have significant implications on local policing costs: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Provincial Government be requested to provide a portion of the 
British Columbia Liquor Tax to communities to be used towards policing costs. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R36) Isolation Allowance District of Port Hardy 

WHEREAS it is challenging to attract and retain employees in isolated communities because of a lack 
of full services and the extra cost to obtain these services elsewhere; 

AND WHEREAS the provincial and federal governments recognize this challenge by providing isolation 
allowance to their employees: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the provincial and federal governments provide a tax 
credit/deduction to all employees living in and around the same communities that those 
governments recognize with Isolation Allowance. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R37) Strong Fiscal Futures Cowichan Valley RD 

WHEREAS the Province's response to the 2014 UBCM Strong Fiscal Futures resolution was limited to 
recognition of the need for more regular, structured dialogue between the Province and UBCM to 
better address shared duties to ensure the delivery of effective, responsive services to citizens; 

AND WHEREAS local governments continue to face significant challenges in providing effective, 
sustainable services and infrastructure management under an outdated local government financial 
system and archaic revenue sources: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Province commit to pursuing the Strong Fiscal Futures report as 
a flexible blueprint for a diversified local government finance system that is both fairer and more 
sustainable. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 
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R38) Agricultural Support Services Alberni-Ciayoquot RD 

WHEREAS agricultural extension services support government and community priorities around food 
security, economic development, climate change adaptation and water management; and 

WHEREAS agricultural producers and stakeholders in each local government are subject to unique 
challenges and opportunities that are difficult to address in the long-term or in a consistent manner 
without predictable, non-project-based funding: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Ministry of Agriculture provide funding to local governments 
through a stable, annual and accountable framework to establish strategic and long-term regional 
agricultural extension supports. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

ENVIRONMENT 

R39) Single-Use Disposable Products City of Powell River 

WHEREAS single-use disposable products, whether they are recyclable or not, must be manufactured, 
handled and then disposed of which is not always done in the proper waste stream; 

AND WHEREAS all petroleum plastic disposable products are derived from fossil fuels which increases 
carbon emissions in the atmosphere, and all plastic products created never "go away"; 

AND WHEREAS the "compostable" or "biodegradable" disposable products are not accepted at all 
composting facilities and can contaminate the recycling stream by being confused with recyclable 
plastic products; 

AND WHEREAS the costs (both known and unaccounted for) associated with these disposable 
"products of convenience", should be borne by the manufacturers, the distributors and the retailers 
who are creating the products and then handing them out to consumers, would create an 
environment of responsibility and awareness by assigning an environmental handling fee to these 
products which is dispersed to local government responsible for financing solid waste and recycling; 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the AVICC/UBCM request the Province of British Columbia to 
engage with retailers, manufacturers and industry to implement an environmental fee for all single 
use plastic products and packaged goods, (including compostable and biodegradable) entering the 
British Columbia market place to incentivize reduction, to help subsidize regional solid waste 
management programs, and to take action towards creating a Provincial Single-Use Item Reduction 
Strategy as part of a Provincial Zero Waste Strategy. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 
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LAND USE 

R40) Development Permit Area Requirements Islands Trust 

WHEREAS in 2003 and 2011 UBCM e~dorsed resolutions calling for legislative changes so local 
governments can issue municipal ticket information or bylaw violation notices for contraventions of 
the prohibition on altering land in designated development permit areas, or contrary to issued 
development permits, but these changes have not yet occurred; 

AND WHEREAS in British Columbia, designation of development permit areas is the main legislative 
mechanism for addressing protection of riparian and environmentally sensitive area and for 
protecting development from hazardous conditions such as erosion: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that UBCM request the provincial government to improve the 
enforceability of development permit area requirements by enabling local governments to enforce 
violations by way of prosecution, ticket or bylaw notices. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R41) Regulation of Privately Managed Forest Lands Cowichan Valley RD 

WHEREAS forest management practices on privately managed forest lands are primarily governed by 
the Private Managed Forests Lands Council with an objective to encourage forest management 
practices on private managed forest lands, only taking into account the social, environmental and 
economic benefits of those practices; 

AND WHEREAS forest management practices on privately managed forest lands can negatively impact 
the quality and quantity of water and effect ecosystem resilience to the impacts of climate change: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the province be requested to undertake a comprehensive review of, 
and amendments to the Private Managed Forest Act and all relevant legislation to strengthen 
requirements of private managed forest land owners to prevent negative impacts to the quality, 
quantity and distribution of water in our watersheds. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R42) Logging in the Urban Interface Sunshine Coast RD 

WHEREAS urban-rural fringe areas are transition zones where industrial land uses such as logging or 
other resource extraction, may conflict with local values or impact private water sources or 
contribute to property damage related to storm water management and erosion; 

AND WHEREAS local government and private property owners have limited ability to influence 
resource extraction decisions: 
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THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the provincial government establish buffer zones adjacent to 
residential properties that reduce conflict and ensure that property owners are protected from the 
adverse effects of resource extraction. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R43) Intergovernmental Collaboration on Land Use Planning Sunshine Coast RD 

WHEREAS the inclusion of local governments in joint indigenous - provincial land use planning 
processes would offer an opportunity for intergovernmental collaboration and open communication 
that supports relationship-building and government-to-government reconciliation efforts with First 
Nations; 

AND WHEREAS local governments who are responsible for undertaking planning activities and 
providing services within defined geographic boundaries wish to engage with First Nations partners 
to address common interests and community needs: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the provincial government be urged to include local governments in 
land use planning discussions with First Nations to ensure continuity of government-to-government 
engagement and support collaborative and complementary approaches to land use planning that 
recognize community interests. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R44) Protection of Old Growth Forests City of Victoria 

WHEREAS old-growth forest has significant economic, social and environmental value as wildlife 
habitat, tourism resource, carbon sinks, drinking watersheds and much more; 

AND WHEREAS old-growth forest is increasingly rare on Vancouver Island and current plans on 
provincial Crown land call for logging the last remaining old-growth forest, outside of protected areas, 
Old-Growth Management Areas, and similar reserves, over the next 10-20 years: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the old-growth forest on provincial Crown Land on Vancouver Island 
be protected from logging, beginning with a moratorium and followed by amendments to the 
Vancouver Island Land Use Plan. 

AND IT BE FURTHER RESOLVED that the Provincial government work with First Nations, local 
communities, labour organizations and industry to pursue a just transition and expanded economic 
opportunities through sustainable management of second-growth forests and value-added 
production of forest products. 

RESOLUTION WITHDRAWN 
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REGIONAL DISTRICTS 

R45) Regulate and Enforce Vehicle Parking on Provincial Roads Sunshine Coast RD 

WHEREAS regional districts have not been granted the authority to regulate vehicle parking on 
roadways in rural areas; 

AND WHEREAS the Province and the RCMP have limited resources to regulate and enforce the 
increased volume of vehicles parked illegally on roads and right-of-ways that cause congestion and 
unsafe conditions for other vehicles, pedestrians and emergency first responders: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Province of British Columbia extend authority to regional 
districts to regulate and enforce vehicle parking on provincial roads and right-of-ways. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R46) Parking Enforcement in Rural Areas Sunshine Coast RD 

WHEREAS the RCMP are responsible for enforcing parking regulations in rural areas which takes 
policing resources away from other priorities; 

AND WHEREAS the provincial response to UBCM Resolution 2014-B102 requesting that regional 
districts be granted the authority to enforce parking regulations within their boundaries indicated 
that further research was required prior to undertaking any policy change: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure and the Ministry 
of Public Safety and Solicitor General jointly review parking enforcement in the rural areas to either 
provide regional districts with the authority to enforce parking regulations within their boundaries or 
to adequately resource rural detachments to ensure that community safety issues related to illegal 
parking are addressed. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

SELECTED ISSUES 

R47) Wireless Connectivity in Rural Areas Alberni-Ciayoquot RD 

WHEREAS intermittent or complete lack of cellular services in remote communities and along over 
5,000 km of BC's rural highways creates a significant barrier for access to emergency services, 
negatively affects emergency response time, and increases public safety risk; and 

WHEREAS there is a market failure to provide cellular services where revenue cannot support costs to 
deploy and maintain the service: 
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THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Province set targets to close gaps in cellular service in remote 
communities and along rural highway sections, and oblige service providers in partnership with all 
levels of government to close these gaps. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

R48) Provincial Universal School Food Program City of Victoria 

WHEREAS almost 500,000 individuals in BC experience food insecurity, and Canada remains one of 
the only Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) nations without a 
national school food program and Canada's current patchwork of school food programming reaches 
only a small percentage of students; 

AND WHEREAS school food programs have been shown to increase children's consumption of 
vegetables, fruits and other healthy foods and decrease the consumption of unhealthy ones; improve 
students' mental health, including reductions in behavioural and emotional problems; improve 
cognitive skills and increase scholastic success: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that UBCM advocate to the provincial government for a Universal 
Healthy School Food Program that will enable all students in BC to have access to healthy meals at 
school, building on existing programs and including food education to serve culturally appropriate, 
local, sustainable food to the fullest extent possible. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

PART 3- LATE RESOLUTIONS 

On motion, duly moved and seconded, that the Late Resolutions Report be received was endorsed. 

AVICC RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE REPORT ON RESOLUTIONS RECEIVED AFTER THE DEADLINE 

A. LATE RESOLUTIONS: ADMIT FOR PLENARY DEBATE 

L1 Moratorium on Hornby and Denman Fishery Comox Valley Regional District 

L3 Increase Provincial RCMP Contribution City of Col wood 

B. LATE RESOLUTIONS: NOT APPROPRIATE FOR DEBATE 

L2 Eliminate GST and PST on Construction Materials Town of Ladysmith 

Ll) Moratorium on Hornby and Denman Fishery Comox Valley Regional District 

WHEREAS coastal communities rely on the sustainable management of our oceans and the Salish Sea 
in particular, as well as the protection of species at risk; 
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AND WHEREAS 4/5 of the herring fisheries have already been closed due to poor returns, with the 
last remaining fishery being located around Hornby and Denman Islands; 

AND WHEREAS over 70,000 signatures have been gathered against this particular fishery; 

AND WHEREAS the K'6moks First Nation, whose unceded territory this fishery occurs on, has 
expressed concerns about current harvest levels: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Association of Vancouver Island and Coastal Communities 
request that the Department of Fisheries consider a moratorium on the Hornby and Denman Islands 
fishery, or a substantial reduction in the allowable catch volume effective in 2020. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 

L3) Increase Provincial RCMP Contribution City of Colwood 

WHEREAS British Columbia Municipalities may jointly participate in RCMP/Policing to cost-effectively 
manage community safety in their region with the Province providing funding to each Municipality 
based on population; 

AND WHEREAS the 2018 West Shore RCMP General Duty Service Assessment has identified that the 
current 81 officer detachment needs to be bolstered by 9 officers immediately and another 4 by 2023 
with the current share contributed by the Province providing 40% fewer officers per capita, equating 
to an approximate $720,000 short fall, forcing some municipalities to contribute more than their 
equitable share; 

AND WHEREAS the Province does not hesitate to force a municipality to hire additional officers when 
it determines that the Municipality requires them to meet the needs of the community, as was the 
case for the City of Victoria this year: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Province immediately increase their contribution for the 
provincial component of RCMP funding to meet the immediate and projected service needs for the 
communities they serve where a General Duty Service Assessment has identified a short fall. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 
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RESOLUTIONS OFF THE FLOOR 

On motion, duly moved and seconded, that the resolution titled ~~subsidies to Fossil Fuel Companies" 
distributed to all members in attendance be admitted for discussion was endorsed. 

OFl) Subsidies to Fossil Fuel Companies 

WHEREAS the Federal government recently released a scientific report that reveals that Canada is 
warming at twice the global rate, the Provincial government recently approved a $5.35-billion 
package of tax incentives for a $40-billion LNG Canada mega project, supported by $1.275 billion from 
the Federal government, and, according to a 2015 report by the International Monetary Fund, the 
annual Federal government subsidy to the fossil fuel industry is $46 billion; 

AND WHEREAS the funding formula for local governments has changed little since 1867 with local 
governments receiving roughly 8 cents of every tax dollar leaving them unprepared for the emerging 
and significant costs of mitigation and adaption to climate change; 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that UBCM call on the Provincial government to end all subsidies to fossil 
fuel companies and to invest the money instead in climate change mitigation and adaptation 
activities being undertaken by local governments in a predictable and regularized funding formula; 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the UBCM through the FCM call on the Federal government to 
end all subsidies to fossil fuel companies and to invest the money instead in climate change 
mitigation and adaptation activities being undertaken by local governments in a predictable and 
regularized funding formula. 

ON MOTION, was ENDORSED 
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CITY OF PRINCE RUPERT 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 

DATE: June 24'11 , 2019 

TO: Mayor and Council 

FROM: Robert Long, City Manager 

SUBJECT: 2018 ANNUAL REPORT APPROVAL 

RECOMMENDATION: 

~(c.) 

THAT Council, by resolution, having heard the comments of the public approve the 
2018 Annual Report. 

BACKGROUND: 

• Preparation of an Annual Report (the " Report") is a statutory requirement of the 
Community Charter. 

• The scope of the Report is specified in the Charter. 

• Council approved the circulation of the Report at the June I 011
, 201 9 Council 

Meeting and moved the Annual Public Meeting and consideration of the Report to 
June 24'11

, 201 9. 

• The Report has been posted on the Ci ty's webpage and copies have been made 
available to the public at City Hall. 

• Notice of the Report was published in the local newspaper on June 13'\ 20 19 and 
June 20'\ 2019. 

CURRENT STATUS: 

This evening, during the Committee of the Whole Meeting, Counci l heard the comments of 
the public. 

CONCLUSION: 

Council, having now heard the comments of the public, approve the Report and 
complete the process defined in the Community Charter. 

Report Prepared by: 

~~ 
~( Robert Long, 

City Manager 
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The City of Prince Rupert 2018 Annual Report has been 
prepared in compliance with the Community Charter. The 
purpose of the report is to provide the citizens of the 
community with financial and non-financial information 
regarding the operations of the Municipality during the 
calendar year. 

Required Information: 
The Community Charter requires the Annual Report provide information on: 

+ The Municipal Services and Operations for the previous year; 

+ The progress made in the previous year in relation to the objectives and the measures 
established for that year; 

+ The Municipal Objectives, and the measures that will be used to determine progress 
respecting those objectives, for the current and next year; 

+ The Audited Annual Financial Statements; 

+ Any declarations of disqualification made under Community Charter Section~~~; 
+ Information on Property Tax Exemptions; and, 

+ Other information the Council considers advisable . 
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Dear Resident, 

Our commun ity is beginning to turn a corner as we build momentum on a variety of initiatives that are set to move 
Prince Rupert forward well into the future. 

Many planning initiatives have been conducted to ensure we steer our ship in the right direction for the next 20 yea rs, 
and we now have a master plan and timeline in place for our infrastructure priorities. Currently, our top priority 
remains to be the replacement of our water supply infrastructure, which we have managed to secure funding for the 
first two phases, with construction of a new dam anticipated to begin this year. We are now working on all fronts to 
raise funds for the last phase of the project which is a water treatment facility and replacement of one of our 
submarine water lines. 

We've been working diligently to diversify our revenue streams so that the sole responsibility of major infrastructure 
projects does not simply fall to the local taxpayer. With a positive final investment decision from Pembina in December 
of 2017, construction has now begun on Watson Island, with lease payments helping to fund the City's portion of the 
cost of replacing our dam, among other investments. Leasing our limited municipally-owned industrial properties allows 
us to diversify and stabil ize our revenue streams, letting us rely less on local taxation to cover the costs of running the 
community and investing in infrastructure. 

As noted in past years, we will continue to advocate for the elimination or replacement of the Provincial incentive 
program that caps the tax rate for marine export industries. The Ports Property Tax Act significantly reduces our ability 
to collect a fair amount of taxes off of local industries, and I' m leading an initiative with other impacted communities in 
B.C. to find a solution with the Province that will work for both the municipalities and the industries. 

In addition, I am now co-chair of the Northwest Resource Benefits Alliance (RBA) which is seeking an agreement with 
the Province to redistribute a share of provincial industrial revenues back to impacted municipalities in the Northwest, 
similar to the Fair Share agreement in the Peace region. As part of our efforts, the Province has recognized the 
importance of the Northwest th rough a recent injection of $100 million dollars in capital funding to our communities, 
and we will continue to push to have that be a long-term annua l commitment. 

Our job as Council and City staff is to determine how to allocate scarce resources each year via our budget process. This 
leads to difficult decisions, and many important community priorities that may be unfunded or overlooked because 
funds simply aren't there. This is why a main priority for our Council has been to tackle our revenue challenges, and 
diversify revenue sources, so that each year we are better able to address those challenges head on. 

In your service, 

Mayor Lee Brain 

City of Prince Rupert-2018 Annual Report 5 
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MAYOR & COUNCIL 
Mayor Lee Brain 
Email: mayor@princerupert.ca 

Phone: 250-627-0939 

Mayor Lee Brain is a fourth-generation "Rupertite". Raised in Prince Rupert, he spent 
his time working with at-risk youth, as well as getting involved in the community through 
vo lunteering on First Nations issues, arts, sustainability and has faci litated group 
development. Lee has a degree in Developmental Psychology, focused on Sustainable 
Community Development and Dialogue. He also holds a Certificate in Innovative 
Leadership. He has studied various governing systems including innovative international 
21st century community models. In 2009, he spent a month on one of the world's largest 
oil refineries in India gaining knowledge of processes involved in global oil operations. 

Lee has over five years of professional facilitation experience and training, along with 
extensive experience in conflict resolution and mediation. Lee's facilitation experience, 
combined with his passion, energy and enthusiasm is an asset for any group seeking to 
become more effective, innovative and engaged .. 

Councillor Nick A dey 
Email: nick.adey@princerupert.ca 

Born in Leicester Eng land, Councillor Nick Adey moved to Victoria in 1967, where he 
attended school and university. He first came to Prince Rupert in 1979 as a summer 
student, and worked at the old grain elevator on the waterfront. After graduating from 
UVic with a BA in History, and a teach ing certificate, he took his first teaching position as a 
secondary teacher in Kitkat la in 1983. He transferred to Prince Rupert in 1985, w here he 
taught for 32 years at Port Edward, Westview, PRSS, and CHSS. He was a Vice-Principal at 
both Westview and PRSS for 4 years before returning to the classroom in 1995. He has 
been an active staff representative in t he PRDTU. He served for 2 years on the Library 
Board, for 2 years on the Golf Course Executive, and coached community soccer and 
basketball. He is also a guitarist, and has played in local groups for over 30 years as well as 
teaching music. 

Nick retired from teaching in 2017, and is serving on City Council for the first time. His 
approach to serving on Council can be encapsulated by the phrase "Listen, Learn, 
Collaborate, Act". As a Counci llor, he hopes to focus on economic diversification, 
affordability, environmenta l sustainability, and quality of life issues. He hopes to build on 
the successes of the previous Council, while responding effectively to new issues as they 
arise. 

Councillor Barry Cunningham 
Email: barry .cunn ingham @princerupert.ca 

Councilor Barry Cunningham has lived in Prince Rupert for 37 years, w orking first as a 
flooring contractor and now in environmental response for the Canadian Coast Guard. 

Barry's volunteer activ ities have included the Prince Rupert Labour Council, the 
Unemployed Action Centre, Executive member of Prince Rupert Minor Hockey, and 
minor soccer coach . 

Barry's focus on Council is promoting economic development w ith a focus on equality, 
fairness, labour issues and environmental commitments f rom industry. 

Barry is considered an avid listener who endeavours to hear all the facts before 
addressing an issue. He resides in Prince Rupert with his wife, enj oying the company of 
his 3 chi ldren and 5 grandchi ldren. 
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Councillor Blair Mirau 

Email: blair.mirau@ prince ru pert.ca 

Blair Mirau is a born-and-raised Rupertite, the Ch ief Executive Officer of the 
Gitmaxma k'ay Nisga'a Society, and a second-term Councillor for the City of Prince 
Rupert. He oversees the Nisga'a Society and its social enterprises, including the 
Nisga'a Hall and Rupert Lawn & Garden and is working towards his Master's at Royal 
Roads . He is Chair of the City's Small Business Committee and a recipient of the BC 
Business Top 30 Under 30 award . Blair earned his undergraduate degree in 
International Development at the Un iversity of Winnipeg and was previously the 
Grant Writer at Prince Rupert City Hall where he won an international award for his 
work. 

Councillor Wade Niesh 

Email: wade .niesh@princerupert .ca 

Councillor Wade Niesh has lived in Prince Rupert since the age of~. Currently he is a sole 
proprietor operating his own bu ilding contractor enterprise. He has worked in other 
sectors in the community includ ing the airport, bus transportation, and retai l. 
Wade strives to apply his strong work ethic to Council. 

He encourages conversation with the community to enable him to make wise, common 
sense decisions to move the community toward a brighter, open for business, future . By 
focusing on economic prosperity, he believes the City can build a better community for 
local citizens and newcomers alike . 

........... .................... .... ... .•... .... .....................•..•.......... ...........•••..•.................. •....••....•.... .... 

Councillor Gurvinder Randhawa 

Email: gurvinder.randhawa@princerupert.ca 

Counci llor Gurvinde r Randhawa and his family, including his t hree child ren, have been 
living in Prince Rupert for over 25 years. He has a Bachelor of Scie nce and Bachelor of 
Education in India . After arriving in Prince Rupert, Gurvinder also attended Northwest 
Community College for a few years to continue his education. 

In India, Gurvinder worked as an auditor with the Accountant General. He is currently self 
employed as an owner-operator of a driving school as well as a local taxi. He is an active 
member of the recreation community, and has coached minor socce rfor many years . He 
has served on the Board of Di rectors for Tourism Prince Rupert and also served as a board 
member of the Northwest Community College. 

As a Counci llor, Gu rvinder advocates fo r training and employment opportunities for 
reside nts, so that t here is as much local economic benefit as possible from industry. 
Gurvinder also advocates for policy to attract new economic opportunities and encourage 
growth in existi ng businesses. Additiona lly, he is concerned with the renewal of Prince 
Rupert's aging infrastructure. 

See next page for more Councillor Profiles! 
Public can access regular City Council meetings by attending them in person-Council meets every second 
Monday, and full schedules are available online via www.princerupert.ca. They can also be streamed online 
via the City's website or accessed via Citywest Channel1o. 
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Councillor Reid Skelton-Morven 

Email: reid.skelton-morven@princerupert.ca 

Councillor Reid Skelton-Morven was born and raised here in Pri nce Rupert, with 
family roots ofTsimshian & Nisga'a heritage in the vi llages of Metlakatla & 
Gitlaxt'aamiks (New Aiyansh) BC. Reid is the Co-Founder & Founder of two bus inesses 
& a social enterprise here in Northern BC, and his passion for entrepreneurship & 
economic development has led to a wide variety of different positions; from 
facilitating business planning workshops with Futurpreneur Canada, serving as a 
Public Re lations Officerfor the Prince Rupert Toastmasters, contributing as a director 
of the Prince Rupert & District Chamber of Commerce, to volunteering at the Charles 
Hays Secondary School (CHSS) w ith young & aspiring entrepreneurs in the 
entrepreneurship n&n classes. 

Reid holds executive certificates in entrepreneurship, social media strategies & web 
design, both from the Peter B. Gustavson School of Business, at the University of 
Victoria. In past positions Reid has served as a student constable with the Royal 
Canadian Mounted Police (RCMP), which he took part in proact ive community 
policing initiatives here in Prince Rupert, and in Coastal Fi rst Nations Communities. 
Reid also served in a variety of different roles including food and beverage as a 
bartender, gaming security as a gaming security officer, and indust rial marine first aid 
as an offshore medic. 

In his spare time you can find Reid spending time with fami ly and friends, taking his 
two twin step-daughters out to the various beautiful parks & t rails in town, 
volunteering his time with youth & aspiring entrepreneurs, or serving as an master of 
ceremonies in various community events such as National Aborigina l Day. 

Reid's focus for his first term in office is made up a few different strategic priorities, 
which encompasses a brighter & sustainable economic future, as we ll as rectifying the 
infrastructure challenges we face as a community . 

••••................................ .••..........•..................................•...•...................•............•... ..... ..... 

2019 City Council Schedule 
January February March 
14th Monday 11th Monday 11th Monday 
28th Monday 25th Monday 25th Monday 

April May June 
8th Monday 13th Monday 1oth Monday 
29th Monday 2]th Monday 24th Monday 

July August September 
22nd Monday 19th Monday gth Monday 

October November December 
]th Monday 4th Monday gth Monday 
21st Monday 25th Monday 
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ORGANIZATIONAL CHART: 
CITY OF PRINCE RUPERT 
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The c:;ity of Prince Rupert h~s approx.imately 259 full ~nd part time s~aff ~ho perform a r~nge of 
funct1ons for our mun1c1pallty. We pnde ourselves on 1mprovmg serv1ces m our commun1ty. 
If you have any feedback on the services you receive, please feel free to contact City Hall by: 
Phone: (250) 6271781 
Email: cityhall@princerupert.ca 
Regular Mail: 424 3rd Avenue West 

Prince Rupert, BC 
V8J 1L7 
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As a corporation/ the City of Prince 
Rupert serves approximately 1.2,ooo 

residents. The Mayor and City Council 
govern this corporation1 setting policy, 

approving die budget and providing 
direction for the C1ty Manager who 

along with City Administration and sta~ 
implements City Council's vision ana 

administers public services. 
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COUNCIL GOVERNANCE 
As the elected representatives of Prince Rupert residents1 the Mayor and City Council are 
tasked with setting Prince Rupert's collective priorities each year1 based on reporting from 
staff regarding policies and programming that will provide the greatest overall community 
benefit1 in addition to meeting all legislative requirements under the Community Charter 
and Local Government Act- the pieces of Provincial legislation that designate municipal 
responsibilities and authorities. At Council meetings1 Council hear reports from staff on City 
business and initiatives and make decisions based on those reports- including applications 
for rezoning1 development permits1 the annual budget1 plans to renew infrastructure1 and 
much more. 

Council may also hear presentations from community members1 local non-profit groups1 

and other community partners during these meetings1 to help them stay informed about 
issues impacting Prince Rupert and take action where appropriate . Council members also 
participate in committees that meet to make decisions on a wide range of topics relevant 
to Prince Rupert-from Recreation to Housing1 to the Hospital and Regional District. 

2018 Council Governance Accomplishments: 

~Directed staff to support continued 
redevelopment efforts on Watson Island, 
including remediation and reporting 
requirements to other levels of Government 
(Ongoing) 

S Worked with staff and Small Business Advisory 
Committee towards the implementation of policy 
recommendations to be considered in 2019 

Directed staff in continued pursuit of 
development opportunities for the remainder of 
Watson Island (Ongoing) 

S Directed staff to continue to pursue new 
funding for infrastructure renewal offered in 
Federal budget, especially the final phase of the 
waterworks project (Completed) 

Directed continued discussions with 
neighbouring First Nations, other levels of 
Government, and project proponents re: 
Tsimshian Access project (Ongoing) 

~ Directed staff in the development of a strategy and 
timeline for renewal ofthe Official Community Plan 
in 2019 

Supported staff in the creation of a new Emergency 
Alert system 

Continued to advocate with other levels of 
Government for improvements to fishing policy to 
improve accrual of local benefits from adjacent 
fishing industry 

S Held 8 Committee of the Whole meetings 

Gl/ Successfully achieved over $2o,ooo in Smart 
Communities funding to implement new public 
engagement online platform in 2019 

Continue to liaise with Alaskan Government 
surrounding required upgrades to the ferry terminal 
and Marine Highway System (Ongoing) 
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2019 Council Governance Objectives 
The Council's Governance objectives for 20~9 are as follows: 

• Direct staff to support continued redeve lopment efforts on Watson Island, including remediation 
and reporting requirements to other levels of Government 

• Direct staff in continued pursuit of development opportunities for t he remainder of Watson Island 

• Direct staff to continue to pursue new funding for infrastructure renewal offered in Federa l budget, 
especially the final phase of the waterworks project 

• Direct continued discussions with neighbouring First Nations, other levels of Government, and 
project proponents re: Tsimshian Access project (Ongoing) 

• Continue to liaise with Alaskan Government surrounding required upgrades to the ferry terminal and 
Marine Highway System (Ongoing) 

• Work with staff and Small Business Adv isory Committee towards the implementation of policy 
recommendations to be forwarded in 2018 

• Direct staff in the development of a strategy and time line for renewal ofthe Official Community Plan 
in 2019 

• Direct staff in hiring of new Bylaw and 2 new RCMP staff to increase capacity closer to pre-2001 
levels (prior to mi ll closure) 

• Direct staff to work with RCMP on finding an appropriate new detachment location 

• Create new community enhancement grant process 

• Begin city clean up of derelict veh icles to improve look of community 

City of Prince Rupert-2018 Annual Report 12 
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Letter from the City Manager 

This year, we have been able to offer a reduction in the residentia l and commercia l tax rates. This unique 
situation was made possible through innovative City asset management on behalf of our management team 
as we ll as Mayor and Council, who have worked tire lessly to generate the new revenues that have enabled us 
to shift some of our cost burden away from residents and businesses. 

We continue to work together as a team to remove many of the financial obstacles that have faced the City 
for many years. We have been successful in getting Watson Island back on the tax roll as Pembina moves 
ahead, and we wil l continue to work to attract diverse lease opportunities for the remainder of the island. 
Choosing to remediate and lease portions of the island is a decision that will benefit the community for 
generations to come, as the City will continue to take in lease revenues over the long term, rather than 
obtaining a one-time benefit of selling the lands. This creative solution to an otherwise significant liability is 
now being looked at by other communities facing simi lar issues with derelict properties inherited through tax 
sa le. Our approach is also sparking conversations about the need for municipal government to generate our 
own revenue to be resilient in the face of economic change. 

Sti ll, there are hurdles t hat we continue to face. A remaining hurdle is the continued ex istence of the Port 
Property Tax Act, which limits our abi lity to distribute the tax burden between local industry and other tax 
paying classes. In addition, we cont inue to seek resolution to the disagreement over the Ridley Island Tax 
Sharing Agreement with Port Edward. Lastly, we are seeking a regular transfer of funds through a Resource 
Benefits Alliance for the Northwest. These are issues that we continuously bring up in our meetings with 
other levels of government, and will do so until they are resolved. It is our belief that the people of Prince 
Rupert deserve to see benefit from the existence of local and regional industry, and we will continue to 
support your Council. 

All the best, 

Robert Long, 

City Manager, ity of Prince Rupert 
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Corporate Administration's primary function is to provide legislative and 
administrative support to Mayor and Council through the preparation of agendas, 
minutes and meeting follow-up. Corporate Administration is the communication link 
between Council and City residents by providing assistance to the public with respect 
to Council 1s processes and decisions. Additionally, Corporate Administration: 

• Provides administrative support to the City 
Manager's Office and other municipal departments 
as may be requiredi 

• Provides advice to Council on matters pertaining to 
the Community Charter and the Local Government 
Acti 

• Responds to requests which fall under the 
"Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy 
Act" legislationi 

• Prepares Bylaws and Policiesi 

• Maintains the corporate records management 
systemi 

• Provides administrative support for Road and Lane 
Closuresi Land Sales and Land Transfersi Local Area 
Service Projects and Tendersi 

• Prepares Legal Notices, Advertisements and 
Notificationsi and, 

• Arranges opportunities for continued dialogue with 
Federa l and Provincial ministries to advance 
Council's priorities. 

Corporate Services is also part of Corporate 
Administration. The Corporate Services oversees 
various City Hall departments such as: 

• The City Hall Customer Service Desk 

• Development Services 

• Human Resources 

• Victim Services 

20~8 Corporate Administration Accomplishments 
Provided oversight for updating of bylaws 
related to Cannabis Retail in Prince Rupert 
(Completed) 

~ 

Participated in and guided the activities of the 9 
Records Management Committee (Ongoing) 

Develop a City wide initiative to move 
towards an e-file system for a greater 
proportion of files (Ongoing) 

Ongoing development of a City-Wide 
Protection of Privacy Program including the 
creation of the necessary policies and 
procedures (Ongoing) 

Implement streamlining of the Customer 
Service experience (Ongoing) 

Developed a Committee to address 
Rushbrook Parking (Completed) 

Foster an engaged Customer Service team 
(Ongoing) 

Review Employee and Family Assistance Plan 
provisions and services (O ngoing) 

Continued compensation and Retention 
analysis (Ongoing) 

City of Prince Rupert-2018 Annual Report 

Implemented City-Wide template for job 
descriptions, postings and hiring practices 
(Completed) 

Enact Annual Employee Deve lopment Plans with 
measurable metrics for success (Ongoing) 

Implemented visitor identification and safety 
program (Completed) 

Enrolled necessary staff in Emergency Operations 
Centre (EOC) Courses (Completed) 

Research, develop, and update bylaws as necessary 
(Ongoing) 

Conducted all necessary activities to carry out the 
2018 Municipal Election (Completed) 

Evaluation and implementation of the 
recommendations of the Small Business Advisory 
Committee (Ongoing) 

Oversaw preparation of Union of BC Municipalities 
(UBCM) materials and meetings (Completed) 

Negotiate Ferry Workers Union Agreement 
(Continuing in 2019) 

14 
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2019 Corporate Administration Objectives 
The Corporate Administration Department objectives for 2019 are as follows: 
• Continue to participate in and guide the activities of the Records Management Committee 

• Continue to implement an in itiative to move towards an e-file system for a greater proportion of 
files 

• Implement Rushbrook Parking Committee recommendations 

• Complete compensation and retention analysis 
• Cont inue to implement streamlining of the Customer Service experience 

• Continue to foster an engaged Customer Service team 
• Complete the development of a City-Wide Protection of Privacy Program including the creation of 

the necessary policies and procedures 
• Complete review of Employee and Family Assistance Plan provisions and services 

• Oversee preparation of Union of BC Municipalities (UBCM) materials and meetings 

• Proceed with implementation of the recommendations of the Small Business Advisory Committee, 
as directed by Council 

• Execute new Agreement with Ferry Workers Union 
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The City of Prince Rupert's Finance department manages the City's budget, and other 
financial matters. The full list of the services provided is below: 

• Budgets and Financial Planning • Financial Statements 
• Property Tax Collection • Insurance+ Risk Management 
• Accounts Receivable/Accounts Payable • Payroll Services+ Benefits 
• Utilities Billing • Negotiation of contractual services 
• Variance Report/Financial Analysis 
• Internal Controls/Adherence to 

Purchasing Policy 

• Fees & charges bylaws/Permissive Property 
Tax management 

• Management of the City's IT & GIS 

2018 Finance Accomplishments: 

~ Worked with other impacted Cities and Districts ~ Created Fiv.e Year Financial Plan document for 
~ to share implications of Port Property Tax Cap release dunng budget season (Completed) 

with the Province (Ongoing) 9 Succession for retiring staff (Completed) 

~ Particip~ted in .facilit~tion for.mulating ~ Began process to develop loan bylaw for Phase II of 
alternative opt1ons w1th Prov1nce and Port ~ Water Project. (Ongoing-Bylaw to be presented in 
Edward regarding Ridley Island Tax Share 2019). 
Agreement (Ongoing- Facilitated Independent 
Report completed) li1 

r:L.J Formulated public engagement materials for 
~ RCMP building (Ongoing) 

Updated fees and charges Bylaw for development 
and administrative services (To be completed in 
2019) 

~ Developed additional reserve policies (Ongoing) 

2019 Finance Objectives 
The Finance Department's Strategic Objectives for 2019 are as fol lows: 
• Continue to work with other impacted Cities and Districts to share implications of Port Property Tax 

Cap with the Province (Ongoing) 
• Assist in formulating options with Province and Port Edward regarding Rid ley Island Tax Share 

Agreement (Ongoing) 
• Formulate public engagement materials for RCMP building (Ongoing) 
• Develop additional reserve policies (Ongoing) 
• Create Five Year Financial Plan document for release during budget season 

• Develop loan bylaw for Phase II of Water Project 

• Update fees and charges Bylaw for development and administrative services (Ongoing) 

• Create community enhancement grant policy for implementation in 2020 
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INFORMATION 
SHARING 
To help the public understand and interpret 
the annual budgeting process, in 20:1.8 the City 
released a full report that explained the ins 
and outs of our 5 year financ1al plan, a process 
that we have replicated in 20:1.9. 

The report details many of the City's priorities 
and themes echoed in the Annual Report
including the attraction of new revenues through 
the lease and redevelopment of Watson Island, 
advocating for removal or increased subsidy for 
the Port Property Tax Act, renegotiation of the 
Ridley Island Agreement, and advocacy for the 
implementation of a Resource Benefits 
Agreement in the Northwest. 

It also explains Council's strategic priorities, 
challenges, financial policies, budget highlights, 
long term debt projections, and legislated 
requirements . This report is available online 
on the City's website or at City Hall. 

HOW WERE 
PROPERTY 
TAXES SPENT? 
Each year, City Council approves 
a budget determining how taxes 
will be spent. Property taxes are 
allocated to the services the City 
provides to the community, 
enhancing the quality of life for 
all who live here . For more 
information on how expenses 
are broken down-see the 
graphic (right). 
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2018 SERVICES 

• RCM P 
• Fire 
• Civic 
• Cemetery 
• Dev Serv 
• Ec Dev 
• Governance 
• Roads 
• Transit 
• Finance 
• IT 
• Engineering 
• Parks 

Corp Admin 
Capital 
Ferry 
Recreation 
Grants 
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Prince Rupert Economic Development Office works to make Prince Rupert and the surrounding 
area the premier location for new business ventures. As the communities lead economic 
development agency, we work with businesses to facilitate growth, expedite local, national and 
international business investment development opportunities, collaborate with all levels of 
government and promote sustainable economic growth. 

The role of the Economic Development Office is to: 

• Attract and retain business to Prince Rupert; 

• Participate in regional strategies to attract and retain qualified professionals to support 
local industry; 

• Support the development of local business and improvements in the downtown core; 

• Maintain resources and programs that support local business in Prince Rupert (Love Prince 
Rupert, fa~ade improvement, online business toolkit); 

• Inform policy-making that promotes loca l economic development; 

• Seek to improve transportation efficiencies in connection to the local airport; 

• Work with the tourism sector in Prince Rupert; 

• And, promote industrial opportunities on industrially zoned City properties. 

• •• 
Did you know? In early 2018 the Economic Development Office, in 
partnership with Community Futures, launched a new online business resource 
toolkit for businesses in Prince Rupert. 

Check it out at: https://princerupert.ecdev.org/ 
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2018 Accomplishments 

9 Completed another successful round of Business 
Walks surveys in partnership with the Chamber of 
Commerce, Community Futures and the Province 
(Completed) 

Liaised with Pembina Pipelines to secure a 
positive final investment decision for a potential 
small-sca le propane facility on Watson Island 
(Completed) 

Liaised with other leve ls of government regard ing 
environmental remediation and development 
requirements on Watson lslandi Continue to 
promote Watson Island as an intermodal trade 
and logistics site to potential industria l 
proponents (Ongoing) 

Launched business toolkit in partnership with 
Community Futures to provide local information 
and statistics to inform business plans and grow 
business in Prince Rupert (Completed) 

~~ Continued to promote and award Business 
~ Fac;ade Improvement grants to loca l businesses 

(Completed and ongoing pending avai lable 
funding) 

2019 Objectives 

~ Organized Love Prince Rupert trade show with 
L!J Community Futures, Northern Savings, and other 

community partners (Completed) 

r="'J Developed a phased development plan for 
~ redeve lopment and remediation of Watson Island 

in coordination with the Operations Department 

Participated in award of contract for regional 
attraction and retention strategy 

Awarded $5000 in Business Fac;ade Improvement 
grants to loca l businesses (Completed) 

Installed a kayak launch for public use on the 
Cow Bay Marina breakwater (Completed) 

And, continued to recruit loca l businesses to the 
Love Prince Rupert program 

BC Transit held another Annuai'Stuff the Bus' 
Christmas promotion and fundraiser (Completed) 

Increased mega yacht visits at the Cow Bay 
Marina from 36 in 2017 to 48 in 2018i Overall 
occupancy went from 84% occupancy in 2017 to 
94% in 2018 

The following are the strategic objectives for the Economic Development Office for 20~9: 

• Participate in oversight and execution of contract for regional attraction and retention strategy for 
the Northwest 

• Continue to promote Watson Island as an intermodal trade and logistics site to potential industrial 
proponents 

• Continue to promote business toolkit in partnership with Community Futures to provide local 
information and statistics to inform business plans and grow business in Prince Rupert 

• Continue to promote and award Business Fac;ade Improvement grants to local businesses 

• Complete downtown survey in conjunction with Planning Dept and Downtown survey to inform 
future policy development/programming via Rupert Ta lks 

• Complete Airport ferry refit 

• Complete annual Business Walks survey in partnership with the Chamber of Commerce and 
Community Futures, the Province, and other community partners 
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The Information Technology (IT) Department develops and maintains an internal network of 
close to 200 desktop workstations, digital office equipment and the networking equipment, 
operating systems and servers. Our department maintains the City's financial management 
system including cash receipting, utility billing, taxation, etc. We provide support to all City 
departments on 24/7/365 basis and maintain all computer systems (water, sewer, landfill, 
cemetery, public works, City Hall, recreation, fire department and others). In addition to 
supporting all departments, we maintain RCMP department computer systems and 
surveillance in the City of Prince Rupert. We also provide a helpdesk funct ion for assistance to 
all municipal staff fo r any IT related need. IT's main responsibilities are to : 

• 

• 
• 

• 

Manage the organization's hardware, software and • 
physical communication 

Maintain a current website and social media sites • 

Provide a source of guidance for technology issues 
for staff and associated organizations • 

Maintain information security and availability 

Provide a corporate perspective on information 
technology in itiatives 

Supply the guidance and inf rastructure to deliver 
meaningful information 

Assist organizations that work closely with t he city 
for IT needs 

20~8 Information Technology Accomplishments 
{ii Provision of Mt. Hays repeater for Fire ~ Annual Computer Replacement (Completed) 

Department (Completed) Implemented print server to simplify deployment 
~ Upgraded the City website (Completed) of computers (Completed) 

e Released Municipal mobile application for 
residents to receive push notifications, 
information on events, brochures, points of 
interest, contact information, and news 
(Completed) 

Released City w ide Emergency Notification 
System to provide targeted local notifications r:"7.. 
to residents (via landlines, cell phones and ~ 
email) in the event of an emergency 
(Completed) 9 

9 Replaced aging server and add it to cluster 
(Completed) 

Completed setup of monitoring centre in IT 
office for all critical services (Completed) 

Replaced aging physical mail server with new 
virtual server (Partially completed- server 
replaced, software to be installed and migrated in 
20~9) 
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Installed Network infrastructure for new Public 
Works build ing (Completed) 

Overhauled network in Firehall I 911 centre and 
Public Works for redundancy (Firehall /911 centre 
not completed, carried into 20~9, Publ ic Works 
Completed) 

Redeployed camera systems in RCMP after cell 
refit (Completed) 

Supported Chief Electoral Officer with election 
machines and software during municipal election 
(Completed) 

Mobile application nominated for an award 
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2019 Information Technology Objectives 
The fo llowing are t he strategic objectives for the IT Department in 201.9 : 

• Upgrade audio equipment in Council Chambers to transmit Council meetings 

• Complete software migration from old email server to new one 

• Overhaul network in Firehall I 911 centre for redundancy 

• Install redundant power generator for public works 

• Procure and Install Tower for Water I IT Systems at Shawatlans Hill 

• Procure and Install Tower for Water I IT Systems at Montreal Circle 

• Start replacement of existing water management software (2-3 year project) 

• Replace analog surveillance video system and 26 cameras at Recreation 

• Insta ll new surveillance video system and 8 cameras at Cow Bay Marina 

• Install new surveillance video system and 6 cameras at Watson Island guard house 

• Rep lace existing parking meter at Rush brook with two new units capable of numerous 
payment methods and app integration. 

• Install Office 201.9 for all staff 

• Annual Computer Replacement 

• Move airport website from external vendor to local airport server 
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PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
SERVICES 
The Planning and Development Services Departments at the City oversee building maintenance, 
building permits, land sales, land use applications (such as rezoning, variance, and, property 
information, and trade/business licenses), as well as the administration of cemetery services. 

2018 Planning & Development Services Accomplishments 
r:-rJ Completed update of Development 
~ Procedures Bylaw (Completed) 

~ Reviewed and established direction for Multi
~ family densities, Secondary Suite policy, and 

~} Continue to reorganize and improve web content 
~ with assistance from Communications and IT staff 

(Ongoing) 

Parking informed through Council workshops 
(Ongoing) 

r:i] Investigate and report to Council on zoning for 
~ shipping containers (Ongoing) 

~} Continued to work with Communications staff to 
~ develop materials to assist residents, contractors 

and businesses in understanding development and 
building procedures (Completed) 

Surveyed local institutional, commercial and 
municipal stakeholders via focus groups to tackle 
the question: "Does a Vibrant Downtown 
Matter?" (Ongoing in 201.9) 

2019 Planning & Development Services Objectives 
The Planning & Development Service Department's Strategic Objectives for 2019 are as 
follows: 
• Develop workplan and implementation schedule for renewal of the Official Community Plan and 

Zoning Bylaw in 201.9 - 2020 

• Integrate existing research and data on densities, interim land use policies, downtown vibrancy and 
non-market housing into OCP and Zoning Bylaw Update, and conduct further public engagements 

• Complete focus group work on a Vibrant Downtown 

• Participate in development of downtown revitalization survey on Rupert Talks platform with 
Economic Development Department and Redesign Rupert 

• Update housing data originally collected for Planning for Major Projects for ongoing use and analysis 
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The City of Prince Rupert's Building Department works out ofthe Development Services 
Department in the Customer Service area. This Department ensures that the buildings where 
we live, work and play are safe. The City of Prince Rupert Building Department is available to 
provide assistance prior to building or making changes to properties; whether they are 
residential, commercial, or industrial. Building permits are required for all new construction, 
temporary buildings and for alterations to existing construction with the cost of building 
permits depending on the nature and scope of the work being done. Additionally, this 
Department looks after the care and maintenance of the City's various civic buildings. 

20~8 Building Department Accomplishments 
~J Completed renovations to the RCMP cell 
~ block (Completed) 

~} Oversaw planning and installation of the office 
~ complex at Public Works (Completed) 

~ Building maintenance activities at Lester 
Centre-engage a consultant to design and 
provide a scope of work to address the lower 
metal roof areas w hich continue to have 
leaking issues (Ongoing) 

S Reroofed the Maintenance building at the landfill 
(Completed) 

Completed a survey of the Kwinitsa Station 
museum building to more accurately identify 
and repair issues, and to support future 
applications for grant funding (Grant 
contingent, did not receive) 

Reroofed the storage shed at Public Works 
(Completed) 

r::"ft Installed new heating controls at the Library 
~ (Completed) 

@ Worked on the core Building by law (Ongoing) 

~ And, oversaw multipleJrojects at the Aquatic 
Dl Center (Completed an Ongoing) 

20~9 Building Department Objectives 
The Building Department's Strategic Objectives for 201.9 are as follows : 
• Lester Centre HVAC System replacement and thermometer upgrades 

• Coordinate RCMP HVAC System repairs 

• Repairs of City Hall roof structure 

• Roof assessment and repa irs of Lester Centre 

• Support for Planning Housing Condition Assessment activ ities 

+ Millennium Walkway Wall upgrades 

• Support Recreation in facility upgrades and repairs 
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TACKLING THE CITY'S 
INFRASTRUCTURE NEEDS 
The majority of the City of Prince Rupert's infrastructure was constructed in two decades 
following World War II. This means that most of the City's infrastructure, based on its age, type 
of construction and condition is well past the end of its life cycle. 

As residents of Prince Rupert, we know that for decades our City has needed to replace/ repair 
our aging infrastructure. Our plan is to work towards re-invigorating our community 
infrastructure through renewal projects like those listed in our Operations Department's 20~8 
Accomplishments. 

HOW MUCH WILL OUR 
INFRASTRUCTURE COST 
TO REPLACE? 
RCMP Building $30M 

Landfill Cell upgrade $1oM+ 

Wastewater Treatment $175M 

Water Supply $25M 

Fire Hall $15M 

Bridges/Walls $18M 

Roads/Sidewalks $67M 

Airport Ferry $12M 

TOTAL $352M 

*Please note that costs are based on current best 
estimates and may be subject to change 

Asset Replacement Value 

... 

• Water Dist Sewer • Roads 

• Bridges/Wa lls • Vehicles • Wa ter Supply 

• Storm • Landfill • Ferry Docks 

' 
Want to know more about what the City is doing to "Re:Build 
Rupert"? 

Download the new municipal mobile apP. for regular updates on 
road closures, service disruptions, and mfrastructure repairs! 

City of Prince Rupert-2018 Annual Report 24 



64

The role of our department is to plan for and oversee the maintenance and renewal of our 
infrastructure including: 

• The municipal roads and street network, 
including street lights, traffic signs, 
bridges, sidewalks and pathways 

• The potable water supply and distribution 
system 

• 
• 

• 

• 

Liquid waste management 

Solid waste collection and disposal 

City parks and playgrounds 

The Fairview Cemetery 

20~8 Operations Accomplishments 
The Operations Department has accomplished a great deal in 20~8. Collectively, this Department 
has achieved: 

~ Develop and begin to execute plan for Public 
Works Building renewal project (In progress) 

~J Moved towards full keyless entry and site 
~ security at Operations Yard (In progress) 

@' Continued to deal with ongoing vandalism in the 
Community, i.e. McClymont Park Sign, Mariners 
Park, City Hall, etc. (Completed and Ongoing) 

@ Reinstatement of the Doug Kerr field for use by 
minor baseball (Completed) 

~} Replaced equipment shed roof at Public Works 
~ (Completed) 

Utilized the City's new App to inform residents of 
road closures, street sweeping and any other related 
Public Works notifications (Completed and Ongoing) 

Review and update Public Works Safe Work Policies 
(Ongoing) 

Replaced aging Vactor Flusher truck- a vital 
component of the City's maintenance program 
for sewer, water, and storm infrastructure 
(Completed) 

Completed phase one of Asset Management 
~ program, developing an Asset Management 

Investment Plan (AMIP) and completing inventory of 
water, storm, sanitary, and road assets (Completed) 

Arranged specialized staff training for Confined ~ 
Space and Excavation/trench safety (Completed 
and Ongoing) 

g Occupational Health & Safety Annual Training 
for Committee Members and Supervisors 
(Completed and Ongoing) 

Removed overgrowth around 2nd Avenue Tennis 
Courts (Completed) 

Completed Mariners Park upgrades- installed new 
sign, umbrella, covered umbrella seating, benches 
and garbage cans (Completed) 
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Made improvements to the web-mapping platform 
(GO-map) and increased internal staff and public 
usage and awareness (Completed) 

Developed a new Records Management po licy for 
the Operations Department (Completed) 
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2019 Operations Objectives 
The Operations Department's Strategic Objectives for 20~9 are as follows: 
• Continue work towards asset management plan for City infrastructure to direct future replacement 

timelines 

• Records management upgrades, digitizing and reorganizing engineering fi les 

• Deve lop an operations yard building replacement plan 

• Purchase 3 new utility trucks 

• Purchase a replacement mini-hoe 

• Complete keyless entry system for operations yard 

• Install backup generator at operations yard for IT assets 

• Migrate operations data from City coordinate system t o standard ized UTM coordinates 

• Begin program of capturing location information related to bylaw infractions 

• Implement new Records Management Policy for Operations Department 

The City of Prince Rupert co llects its raw water from an over ~ooJear old Dam at the mouth of 
Woodworth Lake. During regular operations, the raw water is fe from the dam by gravity 
through a supply line that is over a ~oo years old; and runs along the side of a canyon to the 
treatment facility located at the lower end of Shawatlans Lake. During the ongoing construct ion 
of the new access road and dam, water is pumped from our secondary source at Shawatlan Lake. 

2018 Water Utility Accomplishments 
r:-. Released a public advisory regarding home
~ based lead (plumbing) and potential impacts 

on drinking water in cooperation with Northern 
Health (Completed) 

[i 

r:-.. Completed project procurement of Woodworth Q 
L:.J Lake Dam (Completed and Ongoing) 

r:-,; Installed ch lorine analyzers at Shawatlans @ 
L.::1 (Completed) ~} 

r:--".. Installed cameras and chlorine monitoring ~ 
L:J (Complete) 

City of Prince Rupert-2018 Annual Report 

Ongoing pumping of water to the community whi le 
the Raw Water project is completed and the Dam 
proj ect starts. Ant icipated end date for pumping is 
2020 (Ongoing) 

Completed Radio Path Study for SCADA (Complete) 

Replaced large section of water main on McBride 
Street as preventative maintenance (Complete) 

Responded to boi l water advisory and demonstrated 
successfu l t reatment of giardia (Completed in 2019) 

Installed additional ch lorine sensor alarms at 
Shawatlans pump house (Completed in 2019) 
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20~9 Water Utility Objectives 
The Water Utility's Strategic Objectives for 20~9 are as follows: 
• Complete water quality testing program in residences for metal leaching from home plumbing, as 

mandated by Northern Healthi 

• Continue with water dam replacement project contract finalization and construction 

• If grant application for water treatment and submarine line is successful, initiate design and 
permitting processes for t hat project- which represent s the 3rd and Final Phase of the water 
infrastruct ure replacement proj ecti 

• Tot al rehabi lit ation of uti lit ies at ]t:h and Green Street 

• Continue annual capita l water main rep lacement program 

SOLID WASTE UTILITY 
The City of Prince Rupert owns and operates its' Landfill site 8km from town on Ridley Is land 
Road . This landfill was commissioned in ~99~ and has a life span of approximately ~oo years, 
dependent on waste intake volumes. 

20~8 Solid Waste Accomplishments 
Completed West Side berm (Phase 2) of landfi ll 
expansion (Completed in early 2019) 

ElJ Applied w ith MMBC (Recycle BC) to become an 
approved residential recycling provider (Ongoing) 

9 Concluded Phase 1 contract for secondary 
lagoon at landfi ll (Completed) 

9 Replaced the small commercial garbage truck 
(Completed) 

9 Relocation of Liquid Waste disposal site (Completed) 

~ Mapped and timed sol id waste collection routes 
(Completed) 

~ Purchased and install1o ergonomic refuse 
containers (Completed) 

Provided in-kind support for community cleanup 
activit ies of Positive Prince Rupert- Civic Pride and 
Rupert Rubbish Round up (Completed and Ongoing) 

@ Replaced roof on landfill shop (Completed) 

@ Arranged SWANA t raining for t wo staff 
members (Completed) 

20~9 Solid Waste Objectives 

Instal led new scale load sensors and weight 
indicators at landfi ll (Completed in 2019) 

The Solid Waste Utility's Strategic Objectives for 20~9 are as follows: 
• Purchase of dual bay garbage t ruck wit h recycling capacity 

• Development of a recycling program, including literature t o provide to community through 
schools/Rupert Ta lks platform 

• Issue for Tender and complete construction of secondary leachate lagoon 

• Continue to provide in-kind support for community cleanup activities of Positive Prince Rupert 
Civic Pride and Rupert Rubbish Round up 

• Purchase of a replacement excavator for landfi ll operations 

• Insta lling new litter fencing along t he new west berm cel l at t he landfill 
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The City of Prince Rupert's t ransportation network consists of approximately 62 km of road, 
four t raffic bridges, t hree of which are wooden and numerous stacked rock retaining walls. 

20~8 Transportation Utility Accomplishments 

s 
GJ 

Repaved McBride following rep lacement of 
large sect ion of water main (Complet e) 

Purchased a small asphalt mi ll ing machine t o 

~ Participat ed in working group wit h ot her local 
business and NWCC t o create Heavy Duty 
Mechanical Trades in Prince Rupert (Complet e) 

improve patching and potho le repair out comes r:-} Tendered and awarded annual capital paving 
(Complet e) L:::!l program (Completed) 

r:-J Replac ing fai led ret aining wa ll on Pigott Avenue O Improved pedestrian crossing at Comox/gth Avenue 
~ (Ongoing) West intersection (Completed early 2019) 

r:-.; Staff working with Ministry of Transportat ion ~Traffic control line painting at t he Rush brook 
1.!.1 and Inf rastructure to improve pedestrian safet y Improvement Area (Moved to 2019) 

on highway corridor (Ongoing) r:-~ r:-} U Replaced portion of fai led sidewalk on Fraser Street 
l!J Fi lled mechanic position vacancy (Complete) (Complet ed) 

[ij Explored pedestrian improvements to t he 
McBride Street wa lkway t o English Hi ll. 
(Complete) 

M Replace two sections of the floating dock 
fingers at Rush brook (Ongoing) 

~ •• j 
~ 
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Gj Replaced portion of rotten wooden wa lkway on 
Rushbrook boat passenger ramp (Completed) 

Comprehensive line painting program, includ ing 
t hermoplast pa int (Completed) 

Industrial park drainage study (Ongoing) 
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20~9 Transportation Objectives 
The Strategic Objectives for the Transportat ion improvements in 2019 are as follows: 

• Complete comprehensive pav ing program throughout the community 

• Staff continuing to work with Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure to improve pedestrian 

safety on highway corridor 

• Implement significant paving projects with increased 2019 budget- Lest er Centre Parking Lot, 

George Hills Way, Airport Ferry Road 

• Total rehabilitation of utilities at ]th and Green Street 

• Complete Industria l Park drainage study and complete work 

The current sewerage system within the City of Prince Rupert dates back to the early 1900s 
and is divided into ten sewerage areas, each with a piped discharge outfall into Prince Rupert 
Harbour. Of these ten areas, six are combined sewers and fou r have partially separated 
sanitary and storm sewers. The majority of the wastewater is currently discharged into the 
Harbour without any treatment. 

20~8 Sanitary Utility Accomplishments 
9 Sewer main replacement in the 400 Block of 7th 

Avenue East I Green Street (Moved to 2019) 

Created a hand out on "What to flush" due to 
multiple sewer breaks and blockages 
(Completed) 

Completed Pillsbury Lift Station Generator 
connection (Completed) 

r=-1 Lift Station Assessment Study (Completed and 
~ Ongoing) 

~} Outfa ll Relocation Study with possible upgrades 
~ (Ongoing) 

r7} Continued with Liquid Waste Management 
~ Plan (O ngoing) 

~} Completed Radio Path St udy fo r SCADA 
~ (Completed) 

20~9 Sanitary Utility Objectives 
The Strategic Objectives for the Sewer Utility in 2019 are as follows : 

• Complete the lift station assessment 

• Complete Outfall Relocation Study 

• ]th East and Green sanitary upgrades 

• Wantage Road sanitary upgrades 

• Obtain Federal administrative directive on Wastewater Treatment 

• Sewer main replacements on Crestview 
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RECR . ATlUf\J + COMtMttNITY~ 
SERVICES DEPARTMENT ~ 

I 
The Recreation and Community Services Department focuses on community health, wellness 
and maintaining an exceptional quality of life for all residents. The Department provides 
recreation services throughout the Recreation Complex, including Fitness Centre, Arena, 
gymnasiums and more. In addition, we offer a variety of meeting rooms and event spaces, 
where we regularly host conferences, banquets, traveling exhibits and community celebrations. 

20~8 Recreation Accomplishments 
~ Repair/ re-plumb Aquatic Centre hot tub 

(Completed) 
~ Replace mezzanine door and skylights to increase 

building heating efficiency (Completed) 

~ Reg rout stairs adjacent to tot slide in Aquatic Centre 
(Carried over into 2019) 

20~9 Recreation Objectives: 
The 20~9 strategic objectives for the Recreation and Community Services Department 
are as follows: 

• Boiler replacement to increase facility energy efficiency (two year project, complete in 2020) 

• Renovate the Earl Mah Aquatic Centre's Accessible Washrooms 

• Replacement of the Earl Mah Aquatic Centre disinfection system 

• Ventilation upgrades to the Jim Ciccone Civic Centre Arena Ammonia system 

• Develop and implement a Recreation survey for both individuals and organizations to inform 
programming and policy 

• Develop a recreation allocation policy to streamline community use of Recreation Facilities and Fields 

• Collaborate with the community to create a youth lounge, with support from IMAGINE Grant program, 
Donations from North Coast Credit Union, to have a safe space for youth to spend time after school 

. . 

f "Like" the Pri~c.e. Rupert Recreation page for regular updates 
. . on events, act1v1t1es, and more! 
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Established as a volunteer brigade in ~908, the Prince Rupert Fire Department responds to 
a wide variety of emergency and non emergency calls every day, totaling over ~400 calls for 
assistance each year. The Fire Rescue Department also operates the Prince Rupert and Port 
Edward 9~~ service, as well as the public building inspection program, and outreach to the 
community regarding fire safety. 

201.8 Fire & Emergency Services Accomplishments 
~ Execution and completion of contract for ~.J Continue wit h ongoing succession planning to 

L:l manage firefighter ret irement ~ Tsunami Hazard Assessment and associated 
community outreach - t o be completed in 2019 

~} Continue to upgrade the survei llance cameras 
~ and monitors in 911 dispatch for city 

departments- estimated to be completed 2019 

~} Continue with ongoing planning for new Fire Ha ll and 
~ replacement of aging apparatus 

~Continue in-house/distant staff training 

Complete ongoing upgrades to radio 
communications for Fire Department and 9~~ 

201.9 Fire & Emergency Services Objectives 
The Strategic Objectives for the Prince Rupert Fire Department in 20~9 are as follows: 

• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

Complete Tsunami Hazard assessment 
Conduct survey of community regarding emergency preparedness to inform programming through 
Rupert Talks platform 
Share results of Tsunami Hazard Assessment w it h community 
Coordinate Emergency Preparedness Fair with Province 

Continue with ongoing planning for new Fire Hall and replacement of aging apparatus (Ongoing) 
Purchase new emergency identifying vests for Emergency Operations Centre t hrough grant funds 

Purchase new radios to support Emergency Operations capacity through grant funds 
Cont inue in-house/distant st aff training 
Continue with ongoing succession planning t o manage firefighter ret irement 

Hiring process for Deputy Chief position . 
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RCMP SERVICES 
The Royal Canadian Mounted Police (RCMP) is Canada's 
National police force. Through contracts with the 
Province of British Columbia and the City of Prince 
Rupert, the RCMP provide policing services within the 
City of Prince Rupert as well as throughout the Province 
of BC. The RCMP is an agency of the Ministry of Public 
Safety and Emergency Preparedness Canada. 

The Prince Rupert Detachment of the Royal Canadian 
Mounted Police encompasses a large municipal component that serves the City of Prince 
Rupert, and a Coastal Policing Unit. The Coastal Policing Unit provides policing services to the 
First Nations communities of Lax Kw'alaams, Metlakatla, Kitkatla, Hartley Bay, Klemtu as well 
as the District of Port Edward and all rural areas from the Alaska border to Klemtu, including 
Highway ~6 half way to Terrace. The authorized strength is supposed to be 36 municipal 
members and ~4 Coastal Policing members for a total of so members. Unfortunately, due to 
fiscal restraint, illnesses, parental leave and transfers, the detachment generally operated 
between 35 and 4~ operational members throughout most of 20~8. 

20~8 RCMP Accomplishments+ Highlights 
@ Contributed to safe roads- continue 

focus on impaired driving but also 
distracted driving (Ongoing) 

[i; ~245 curfew checks conducted, 504 high 
visibility patrols (foot patrols/ bar walks/ 
special events), ~~s school visits and 9 
referrals to Alternative Measures r=r.. A total of ~673 traffic contacts made to 

~ address negative driving behaviour 
(violation tickets, written warnings and 
Notice and Orders) 

Contributed to safer and healthier aboriginal 
communities (Ongoing) 

Crime Reduction- Prolific offenders 
management, community risk 
mitigation strategy for social chronic 
offenders and increase pol ice 
visibility (Ongoing) 

48 visits to the Friendship House, 3 Cooking 
with Cops sessions, 9 Substance Abuse 
Education sessions, 5 safe boating sessions 

M Reduced incidents of Domestic 
Violence (Ongoing) 

45 targeted enforcement initiatives were 
conducted, 6~ check stops, and 94 proactive 
impaired investigations. 

20~9 RCMP Objectives 
The Strategic Objectives for the Prince Rupert RCMP Detachment in 20~9 are as 
follows: 
• Contribute to safe roads- cont inue focus on impaired driving, distracted driving and check st ops 

(Ongoing) 

• Crime Reduction- Prolific offenders management , community risk mitigation strategy for social 
chronic offenders, situation tables, Alternative Measures and increase police visibility (Ongoing) 

• Reduce incidents of Domestic Violence t hrough increased victim services engagement and victim 
support (Ongoing) 

• Contribute to safer and healt hier aboriginal communities with initiat ives f ocusing on subst ance 
abuse, road safety and youth and elders (Ongoing) 
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APPENDIX A: 
Section g8 of Community Charter 

Excerpt from Community Charter 

Annual municipal report 

g8 (1) Before June 30 in each year, a council must 

(a) prepare an annual report; 

(b) make the report available for public inspection under section 97; and, 

(c) have the report available for public inspection at the meeting required under 
section 99· 

(2) The annual report must include the following: 

(a) the audited annual financial statements referred to in section 167 (4) for the 
previous year; 

(b) for each tax exemption provided by a council under Division 7 [Permissive Tax 
Exemptions] of Part 7 [Municipal Revenue], the amount of property taxes that 
would have been imposed on the property in the previous year if it were not 
exempt for that year; 

(c) a report respecting municipal services and operations for the previous year; 

(d) a progress report respecting the previous year in relation to the objectives and 
measures established for tliat year under paragraph (f); 

(e) any declarations of disqualification made under section 111[application to court 
for declaration of disqualification] in the previous year, including Identification of 
the council member or former council member involved and fhe nature of the 
d isqua I ification; 

(f) a statement of municipal objectives, and the measures that will be used to 
determine progress respecting those objectives, for the current and next year; 
and, 

(g) any other information the Council considers available. 
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APPENDIX B: 
Audited Financial Statements 

CARLYLE SHEPHERD & CO. ~s 
CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS V 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Mayor and Council 
City of Prince Rupert 

Opinion 

730 SECOUD AVEUUE WEST 

PRINCE RUPERT BC VtiJ 1 HJ 

TELEPU ONE 25 0-827· 1315 

FACS IM IL E 2 50·624·9230 

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Prince Rupert, which comprise the consolidated 
statement of financial position as at December 31 , 2018. the consolidated statements of operations. 
changes in net financial assets, cash flows and schedules 1 to 8 for the year then ended. and notes to the 
financial statements. including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financia l statements present fairly, in all material respects. the financial 
position of the City of Prince Rupert as at December 31 . 2018 and the results of its operations and cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. We are 
independent of the City in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in Canada. and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financia l statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

Responsibilities of Management and Council for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal controls as 
management determines are necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free of 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the City's ability to 
continue as a going concern. disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless conditions exist that do not allow for the going concern basis to 
be used. 

Mayor and Council are responsible for overseeing the City's financial reporting process. 

Prince Rupert, BC 
May 13. 2019 

COOU IT LAM K I TIM A"T 
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APPENDIX. B: 
Audited Financial Statements (continued ... ) 

~ 

City of Prince Rupert 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
December 31 

2018 
Financial Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 33,045,234 

Taxes Receivable (Note 2a) 2,209,576 

General Receivables (Note 2b) 2,574,243 

Deposit-Municipal Finance Authority (Note 3) 199,858 

Land Inventory Held for Resale (Note 4) 8,169,386 

Loans to Prince Rupert Airport Aulhority (Note 5) 7,259,514 

53,457,811 

Liabilities 

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabil ities (Note 6a) $ 11 ,501 ,733 

Deferred Revenue (Note 6b) 7,161,911 

Landfill Closure Cost (Note 9b) 4,234,000 

ReseNes - Municipal Finance Authority (Note 3) 199,858 

Loans Payable (Schedule 6 and Note 7) 806,527 

Debenture Debt (Schedule 7 and Note 7) 7,635,379 

31,539,408 

Net Financial Assets (Statement D) $ 21 ,918,403 

Non-financial Assets 

Tangible Capital Assets (Statement G and Note 1c) $ 77,518,342 

Investment in City West Cable & Tel. Corp. (Statement Hand Note 8) 36,891,763 

Inventory (Note 1 d) 539,951 

114,950,056 

Surplus and Equity (Statement B) $ 136,868,459 

City Position 

Accumulated Operating Surplus (Statement C) 

Unappropriated $ 12,793,142 

Appropriated 8,168,000 

20,961,142 

Bylaw and Statutory ReseNe Funds (Statement F) 7,395,351 

Investment in City West Cable & Tel. Corp. (Statement H and Note 8) 36,891,763 

Investment in Tangible Capital Assets (Statement I) 71,620,203 

Net Position (Statement B) $ 136,868,459 

~~ 
Corinne Bomben, CPA, CA 

Chief Financial Officer 

Page 2 of 25 
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Statement A 

2017 

$ 29,232,094 

1,755,699 

6,022,869 

195,602 

8,280,946 

7,616,539 

53,103,749 

s 10,913,280 

6,061 ,063 

4,234,000 

195,602 

1,049,290 

8,145,057 

30,598,292 

$ 22,505,457 

$ 69,156,741 

36,297,763 

579,150 

106,033,654 

$ 128,539,111 

$ 16,334,894 

2,290,000 

18,624,894 

7,409,411 

36,297,763 

66,207,043 

$ 128,539,111 
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APPENDIX B: 
Audited Financial Statements (continued ... ) 

Statement 8 

City of Prince Rupert 

Consolidated Statement of Operations 
For The Year Ended December 31 

Unaudited 2018 2017 

2018 Budget Actual ~ 
Revenues 

Taxes (Net) (Schedule 1) $ 19,876,000 $ 19,775,574 $ 19,805,066 

Sale of Services (Schedule 2} 11,665,000 11,253,089 11,191,223 

Services Provided to Other Government 70,000 83,490 70,035 

Government Transfers (Schedule 3) 12,535,500 6,218,553 6,943,910 

Fees, Permits, Licenses and Fines (Schedule 4) 459,000 1,146,161 467,244 

Investment Income 95,000 425,994 283,735 

City West Cable & Tel. Corp. 994,000 1,111,000 

Prince Rupert Legacy Inc. 3,712,018 788,246 

Miscellaneous Revenues (Schedule 4) 486,500 940,966 1,335,065 

Total Revenue $ 45,187,000 $ 44,549,845 $ 41,995,524 

Expenses 

Protection to Persons and Property $ 10,142,900 $ 10,167,184 $ 9,433,049 

Water, Sewage and Solid Waste 6,124,500 5,170,258 5,364,737 

Roadways and Transportation 6,281,570 5,813,308 5,761,569 

Recreation and Culture 5,924,900 5,987,429 5,522,022 

General Government 4,782,200 5,629,837 4,133,881 

Other 272,430 304,798 268,120 

Total Expenses (Schedule 5) $ 33,528,500 $ 33,072,814 $ 30,483,378 

Revenue Over Expenditure Before Amortization $ 11,658,500 $ 11,477,031 $ 11,512,146 

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets $ $ (3,147,683) $ (2,863,694) 

Writedown of Tangible Capital Assets $ $ $ (46,400) 

Revenue Over Expenditure $ 11,658,500 $ 8,329,348 $ 8,602,052 

Opening City Position $ 128,539,111 $ 128,539,111 $ 119,937,059 

Closing City Position {Statement A) $ 140,197,611 $ 136,868,459 $ 128,539,111 
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~-a 
r+ -a a rt> 

:< StatementC c..m 0 City of Prince Rupert ...... 
"'tt ;z ""'' :;-
n 
R) 

:::0 Operating Funds and Surplus Allocation OJ c c 
"C For The Year Ended December 31 ::l R) 

~ n -I 
tv Fund General Water Sewer Solid Waste 

Prince Rupert 2018 2017 OJ·x 0 Legacy Inc. Total Total 
~ 
00 

> Operating Results U1 ::::J m ::::J 
c Revenue s 31,497,844 $ 3,824,560 s 2,542,241 $ 2,973,182 s 3,712,018 $ 44,549,845 $ 41,995,524 r+ 
~ Expenditure (Exclude Tangible Capital Assets) 27,902,558 1,927,270 1,093,192 2,149,794 33,072,812 30,483,379 OJ 
:::0 • • 
R) $ 3,595,286 s 1,897,290 $ 1,449,049 $ 823.388 s 3,712,018 $ 11,477,033 $ 11,512,145 r+ 

"C ro 0 Add /(Less) 
~ 3 Investment in Tangible Capital Assets $ (3,401,161) s (2,289, 782) $ (370,245) s (3,169,407) s $ (9,230,595) $ {14,294,978) 

New Equipment Loan from MFA 890,000 ro Debt payment and Actuarial Adjustments 688,858 (19,108) 669,750 (312,090) 

Bylaw and Statutory Reserve Interest Income (150,224) (150,224} (92,942) ::l 
Prince Rupert Legacy Dividend 3,950,000 550,000 (4,500,000) 

r+ 
V\ 

City West Cable & Tel. Corp Loan Repayment 400,000 400,000 400,000 

City West Cable & Tel. Corp (lncome)lloss (994,000) (994,000) (1,111,000) 
~ 

n 
Transfers between Funds (2,466,000) 2,466,000 0 
Transfer (to)/ from Reserves 293,359 (19,362) (50.239) (59,474) 164.284 (406,532) 

::l s (1,679,168) $ (1,759,144) s (439,592) $ (762,881) $ (4,500,000) $ (9,140,785) $ (14,927,542) r+ -· Total Operating Surplusi(Deficlt) s 1,916,118 $ 138,146 s 1,009,457 $ 60,507 $ (787,982) $ 2,336,248 s (3,415,397) ::l 
Balance forward Surplusi(Deficlt) 6,763,212 2,279,200 3.037,383 745,185 5,799,914 18,624,894 22,040,291 c 
Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) s 8,679,330 $ 2,417,346 s 4,046,840 $ 805,692 $ 5,011,932 $ 20,961,142 $ 18,624,894 ro 
Surplus Allocation 

Q_ 

Unappropriated Surplus s 7,504,330 $ 2,217,346 $ 2,931,840 s 5,692 $ 133,932 s 12,793,142 $ 16,334,894 

'-""' 
2019 Appropriated Surplus 1,175,000 200,000 1,115,000 800,000 4,878,000 8,168,000 2,290,000 

$ 8,679,330 $ 2,417,346 $ 4,046,840 s 805,692 $ 5,011,932 s 20,961,142 s 18,624,894 
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A·PPENDIX B: 
Audited Financial Statements (continued ... ) 

City of Prince Rupert 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets 
For The Year Ended December 31 

2018 

Actual 

Revenue Over Expenditure (Statement B) $ 8,329,348 

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (11,509,284) 

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 3,147,683 

Writedown of Tangible Capital Assets 

City West Cable and Tel. Corp. (lncrease)/Decrease in Equity (594,000) 

Change in Inventory 39,199 

Change in Net Financial Assets $ ~587,054l 

Net Financial Assets at Beginning of Year $ 22,505,457 

Net Financial Assets at End of Year $ 21,918,403 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

Statement D 

2017 

Actual 

8,602,052 

(14,294,979) 

2,863,694 

46,400 

(711,000) 

105,017 

{3,388,816) 

25,894,273 

22,505,457 
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APPENDIX B: 
Audited Financial Statements (continued ... ) 

City of Prince Rupert 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
For The Year Ended December 31 

Operating Activities 

Revenue Over Expenditure 

Non-cash Items 

Amortization 

Write down of Tangible Capital Assets 

City West Cable & Tel. Corp 

Taxes Receivable 

General Receivables 

land inventory held for resale 

Inventory 

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 

Deferred Revenue 

Landfill Closure Costs 

Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Financing Activities 

Equipment Loan 

Repayment (Loans) from Prince Rupert Airport Authority 

Principal Repayments 

Cash provided by/(applied to) Financing Activities 

Investing Activities 

Tangible Capital Assets Additions 

City West Cable & Tel. Corp. Loan Repayment 

Cash Provided by/(applied to) Investing Activities 

lncrease/(Decrease} in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 
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2018 

$ 8,329,348 

3,147,683 

(994,000) 

(453,877) 

3,448,626 

111,560 

39,199 

588,453 

1,100,848 

$ 15,317,840 

$ 

357,025 

~752.441} 

$ (395,416) 

$ (11,509,284) 

400,000 

$ {11,109,284l 

$ 3,813,140 

29,232,094 

$ 33,045,234 

Statement E 

2017 

$ 8,602,052 

2,863,694 

46.400 

(1,111,000) 

(584,690) 

(1, 789,650) 

(88,806) 

105,017 

(785,760) 

1,400,139 
500,000 

$ 9,157,396 

$ 890,000 

80,883 

~573,811~ 

$ 397,072 

$ (14,294,979} 

400,000 

$ ~13,894,979} 

$ (4,340,511) 

33,572,605 

$ 29,232,094 
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City of Prince Rupert 

Statement of Bylaw and Statutory Reserve Fund Balances 
December31,2018 

Transfer 

(to)/from Other 2019 Budget 

Statement F 

RESERVE ALLOCATION 

Unappropriated 

Opening Balance Interest/Income Funds Year End Balance ApPropriation Reserve Year End Balance 

BYLAW & OTHER RESERVES 

General Reserves $ 3,454,354 s 77,304 s 108,005 s 3,639,663 s 165,000 $ 3,474,663 s 3,639,663 

Public Work Equipment Reserves 997,379 19,448 (18,367) 998,460 775,000 223,460 998,460 

Ferry Maintenance Reserves 302,025 4,179 150,000 456,204 450,000 6,204 456,204 

Water Asset Management Reserve 51,152 997 19,362 71,511 71,511 71,511 

Sewer Asset Management Reserve 47,747 931 50,239 98,917 98,917 98,917 

Solid waste Asset Management Res. 59,825 1,167 59,474 120.466 120,466 120,466 

Total Bylaw & Other Reserves S 4,912,482 $ 104,026 $ 368,713 $ 5,385,221 $ 1,390,000 s 3,995,221 ...;$:;____;5;;.:.,3;;..;;8;.;;.5.:;;;,2;;;.21;.... 

STATUTORY RESERVES 

Capital Assets & Land Acquisition S 2,145,284 s 41,833 $ (539,331) s 1,647,786 s 115,000 $ 1,532,786 s 1,647,786 

Parkland Reserves 6,616 129 6,745 6,745 6,745 

Parking Space Requirements 137,508 2,681 600 140,789 140,789 140,789 

Cemetery Care Trust 207,521 1,555 5,734 214,810 214,810 214.810 

Total Statutory Reserves $ 2,496,929 $ 46.198 s (532,997) $ 2.010,130 s 115,000 $ 1.895,130 ...;$;...__~2.:.;;.0...;1 0;;.:.'.;..;13;.;;0_ 

TOTAL RESERVES $ 7,409,411 $ 150,224 s (164,284) s 7,395,351 $ 1,505,000 $ 5,890,351 =$===7=,3=9=5=,3=51= 
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Land 

Buildings 

Equipment 

Infrastructure 

Openlna Balance 

$ 5,097,791 

10,186,223 

8,709,767 

102.838,724 

$ 126.832.505 

City of Prince Rupert 

Consolidated Statement of Tangible Capital Assets 
December 31 

CAPITAL ASSETS ACCUMULATED AMORT1ZATION 

Disposals/ Disposals/ 
Write-Downs Closing Balance Amortization Write-Downs 

s 3,156,995 s s 8,254,786 s $ $ 

1,730,822 11,917,045 6,814,013 475,647 

238,367 (575,456) 8,372,678 5,536,259 561,385 (575,456) 

6,383,100 {420:622} 108,801,202 45,325,492 2.110,651 (420,622} 

s 11,509.284 s (996,078} $ 137,345.711 s 57,675l64 $ 3,147,683 $ {996,078} 
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7,289,660 

5,522,188 

47,015.521 

$ 59,827,369 

StatementG 

NET BOOK VALUE 

6211 w.r 

$ 8,254,786 s 5,097,791 

4,627,385 3,372,210 

2,850,490 3,173,508 

61,785,681 57,513,232 

$ 77.518,342 s 69,156,741 
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APPENDIX B: 
Audited Financial Statements (continued ... ) 

City of Prince Rupert 

City West Cable & Telephone Corporation 
Statement of Financial Position 

December 31 

2018 

ASSETS 

City West Cable & Telephone Corporation 

Investment $ 
loan 19,232,762 
Equity 17,659,000 

$ 36,891,763 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Equity, Beginning of Year $ 36,297,763 
Net Income of Corporation 994,000 
Repayment of loan (400,000) 

Equity, End of Year $ 36,891,763 
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Statement H 

2017 

$ 1 

19,632,762 

16,665,000 
$ 36,297,763 

$ 35,586,763 

1,111,000 

{400,000} 
$ 36,297,763 

42 
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APPENDIX B: 
Audited Financial Statements (continued ... ) 

Statement I 

City of Prince Rupert 

Statement of Changes in Investment in Tangible Capital Assets 
December 31 

2018 2017 

Opening Balance $ 66,207,043 $ 55,400,068 

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased By Operations 8,080,593 13,404,979 

Debenture Debt Repayment 149,102 129,922 

Actuarial Additions 88,385 98,895 

Loan Repayment 242,763 83,273 

Writedown of Tangible Capital Assets (46,400) 

Amortization (3,147,683) (2,863,694) 

Closing Balance $ 71,620,203 $ 66,207,043 

Page 10 of 25 

City of Prince Rupert-2018 Annual Report 43 



83

APPENDIX B: 
Audited Financial Statements (continued ... ) 

City of Prince Rupert 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2018 

1) Significant accounting policies 

a) Basis of presentation 

It is the Municipality's policy to follow accounting principles generally accepted for British Columbia 
Municipalities and to apply such principles consistently. These consolidated statements include the 
operations of the General, Water, Sewer, Solid Waste, Capital & Reserve Funds, Prince Rupert Legacy 
Inc. and City West Cable & Telephone Corp. They have been prepared using guidelines issued in the 
CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting Handbook. 

b) Revenue and expenses recognition 

The accrual method for reporting revenues and expenditures has been used. 

Revenues are normally recognized in the year in which they are earned and measurable. 

Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenue in the period in which the 
eligibilty criteria have been met and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made. Transfers 
received for which the expenditures have not yet been incurred are reported as deferred revenue. 

Deferred revenue includes grants, contributions and other amounts received from third parties which are 
specifically designated and the expenditures have not yet been incurred. 

c) Tangible capital assets 

Tangible capital assets are reported at cost. Donated assets are reported at fair market value at the time 
of donation. Tangible capital assets are amortized using the straight-line method as follows: 

Buildings and Improvements 
Equipment 
Infrastructure 

d) Inventory 

Inventory is reported at average cost. 

e) Estimates 

Years 
5 to 50 
5 to 20 
25 to 100 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting 
Standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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APPENDIX B: 
Audited Financial Statements (continued ... ) 

2) 

f) Reporting entity 

City of Prince Rupert 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31,2018 

The City's reporting entity includes the municipal government and entities that are either controlled or 
owned by it. All controlled entities are fully consolidated on a line-by-line basis except for government 
business enterprises. 

Government business enterprises are consolidated on a modified equity basis. Under the modified equity 
basis, accounting policies are not adjusted to conform to the City's, inter-organizational transactions and 
balances are not eliminated and the City recognises annual earnings or losses in its statement of 
operations with a corresponding increase or decrease in the investment. Any distributions reduce the 
carrying value of the investment. 

The City's reporting entities include: 

Prince Rupert Legacy Inc. 
City West Cable & Telephone Corp. 

g) Financial instruments 

Controlled Entity 
Government Business Enterprise 

100% 
100% 

The City's financial instruments consist of cash, taxes and accounts receivable, accounts payable, 
accruals and deferred revenue, capital leases and debenture debt. It is management's opinion that the 
City is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risk arising from these financial instruments. 
The fair value of these financial instruments approximate their carrying value. 

Receivables 

a) Taxes receivable 2018 2017 
Current $ 1,345,339 $ 1,098,825 
Arrears 565,660 402,783 
Tax sale properties 298,577 254,091 

Net Taxes Receivable $ 2,209,576 $ 1,755,699 

b) General receivables 2018 2017 
General receivables $ 2,582,175 $ 6,027,152 
Allowance for doubtful accounts (7,932) {4,283) 

Net general receivables $ 2,574,243 $ 6,022,869 
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APPENDIX B: 
Audited Financial Statements (continued ... ) 

City of Prince Rupert 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31,2018 

3) Municipal Finance Authority reserve and deposit 

The City issues its debt instruments through the Municipal Finance Authority. As a condition of these 
borrowings, a portion of the debenture proceeds are withheld by the Municipal Finance Authority as a 
debt reserve fund. The City also executes demand notes in connection with each debenture whereby the 
Municipality may be required to loan certain amounts to the Municipal Finance Authority. 

4) Land Inventory held for resale 

The Watson Island land property value is reported at the gross value of the property taxes owing when it 
was acquired through tax sale in 2008 plus $2.1 million of remediation costs incurred to prepare the 
island for resale, less $0.95 million for 35 acres leased out. Management believes current market value 
exceeds net book value. There is approximately $2 million owing to the Ministry of Education and BC 
Assessment Authority that is included in accounts payable. 

5) Loans to Prince Rupert Airport Authority 

From Municipal Finance Authority (MFA) 
{Details per Schedule 7) 

From Prince Rupert Legacy 

$ 5,972,456 

(Payments include interest at 2.5% per annum, secured by mortgage on Airport Lands) 

$24,080 due January 28 and July 28 each year with a final 
payment on January 28, 2031 $ 514,775 

$16,054 due AprilS and October 6 each year with a final 
payment on AprilS, 2031 343,184 

$9,030 due June 20 and December 20 each year with a 
final payment on June 20, 2031 193,041 

$10,033 due February 28 and August 28 each year with a 
final payment on August 28, 2032 236,058 

$ 1,287,058 

Total loans to Prince Rupert Airport Authority $ 7,259,514 
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$ 549,498 

366,332 

206,062 

250,000.00 

$ 1,371,892 
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APPENDIX B: 
Audited Financial Statements (continued ... ) 

6) 

7) 

8) 

City of Prince Rupert 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2018 

Accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and deferred revenue 
2018 

a) Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

Trade payables $ 2,984,385 

Accrued liabilities 1,454,980 

Accrued interest payable- MFA 14,565 

Taxes due to other governments 2,148,429 

Salaries, wages, other payroll payables 4,562,193 

Holdbacks and deposits 337,181 
$ 11,501,733 

b) Deferred revenue 

Prepaid taxes $ 1,197,603 

Deferred revenue - PR Legacy 3,312,066 

Other deferred revenue 2,652,242 
$ 7,161,911 

Debenture debt and loans payable 

2017 

$ 2,565,974 
1,023,503 

14,565 

2,351,320 
4,229,971 

727,947 
$ 10,913!280 

$ 1,122,747 

4,938,316 
$ 6,061,063 

Debenture debt and loans are with the Municipal Finance Authority and are being repaid in accordance 
with approved bylaws and agreements. 

Investment in City West Cable & Telephone Corp. 

Financial information for the Company as at December 31 is as follows 

2018 

Assets 
Liabilities to Arms-length parties 

Net Income 

$ 57,027,000 

$ 20,136,000 

$ 994,000 

$ 58,474,000 

$ 22,177,000 

$ 1,111,000 

9) Commitments and contingencies: 

a) Pension information 

The City and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (a jointly trusteed pension plan). 
The board of trustees, representing plan members and employers, is responsible for administering the 
plan, including investment of assets and administration of benefits. The plan is a multi-employer defined 
benefit pension plan. Basic pension benefits are based on a formula. As at December 31, 2017, the plan 
has about 197,000 active members and approximately 95,000 retired members. Active members include 
approximately 39,000 contributors from local governments. 
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APPENDIX B: 
Audited Financial Statements (continued ... ) 

City of Prince Rupert 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31,2018 

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan and 
adequacy of plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and member 
contribution rate to fund the plan. The actuary's calculated contribution rate is based on the entry- age 
normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and employer contributions sufficient 
to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plan. This rate may be adjusted for the amortization 
of any actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the amortization of any unfunded actuarial 
liability. 

The most recent valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2015, indicated a $2,224 
million funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis. As a result of the 2015 basic 
account actuarial valuation surplus and pursuant to the joint trustee agreement, $1,927 million was 
transferred to the rate stabilization account and $297 million of the surplus ensured the required 
contribution rates remained unchanged. 

The City of Prince Rupert paid $1,327,692 (2017- $1,288,053) for employer contributions while 
employees contributed $1,116,812 (2017- $1,072,138) to the plan in fiscal2018. 

The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2018, with results available in 2019. 

Employers participating in the plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer contributions 
made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is because the plan 
records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the plan in aggregate, resulting in no consistent and 
reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to individual employers participating in the 
plan. 

b) Landfill closure costs 

The City is responsible for closing the landfill in accordance with Ministry of Environment regulations. 
Phase 1 and 2 East are now exhausted. Management estimates that Phase 1 and 2 West will extend the 
life of the landfill capacity to 2021. The closure costs have been fully accrued based on the latest landfill 
closure plan. 

c) Third party claims 

The City has various lawsuits and claims pending by and against it. It is the opinion of management that 
the determination of these claims will not materially affect the financial position or the operating results of 
the City. 
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APPENDIX B: 
Audited Financial Statements (continued ... ) 

Schedule 1 

City of Prince Rupert 

Schedule of Tax Revenues 
For The Year Ended December 31 

Unaudited 
2018 Budset 2018 Actual 2017 Actual 

Real Property Taxes 

Municipal Property Tax 

Residential $ 7,113,000 $ 7,114,928 $ 6,992,776 

Utilities 179,000 179,048 172,103 

Major Industry 3,550,000 3,549,579 3,172,360 

Light Industry 652,000 598,610 624,859 

Business 4,895,000 4,760,590 4,882,852 

Recreational 18,000 17,974 17.578 

$ 16,407,000 $ 16,220,729 $ 15,862,528 

Less: Tax Sharing with District of Port Edward $ (898,000} $ {878,978) $ {643,310} 

$ 15,509,000 $ 15,341,751 $ 15,219,218 

Special Payments 

Port Competitiveness Tax Grant $ 1,677,000 $ 1,695,206 $ 1,660,338 

Revenue Tax $ 476,000 $ 534,234 $ 481,870 

Specified Area Tax $ 61,000 $ 60,951 $ 60,951 

Payments in Lieu of Tax 

Federal Government Properties $ 211,000 $ 208,736 $ 213,808 

Prince Rupert Port Authority 1,563,000 1,560,030 1,790,121 

$ 1,774,000 $ 1,768,766 $ 2,003,929 

Grants in Lieu of Tax 

Provincial Government Properties $ 162,000 $ 166,336 $ 161,945 

BC Buildings Corp. 49,000 48,343 49,193 

BC Housing Commission 100,000 91,524 99,202 

BC Hydro and Power Authority 58,000 58,174 58,046 

Insurance Corporation of BC 10,000 10,289 10,374 

$ 379,000 $ 374,666 $ 378,760 

$ 4,367,000 $ 4,433,823 $ 4,585,848 

Net Tax Revenue $ 19,876,000 $ 19,775,574 $ 19,805,066 
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APPENDIX B: 
Audited Financial Statements (continued ... ) 

Schedule 2 

City of Prince Rupert 

Schedule of Sale of Service Revenues 
For The Year Ended December 31 

Unaudited 
2018 Budget 2018 Actual 2017 Actual 

GENERAL FUND 

Protective Services (RCMP) $ 20,000 $ 27,779 $ 20,542 

Transportation Services 

Public Transit $ 383,000 $ 325,975 $ 350,229 

Airport Ferry 1,435,000 1,410,834 1,410,883 

$ 1,818,000 $ 1,736,809 $ 1,761,112 

Environmental Development Services 

Rezoning I Subdivision Services $ 20,000 $ 14,633 $ 13,905 

Parking 70,000 62,670 63,520 

$ 90,000 $ 77,303 $ 77,425 

Public Health (Cemetery) $ 72,000 $ 91,082 $ 70,668 

Recreation and Cultural Services 

Civic Centre Rentals & Programs $ 271,000 $ 279,661 $ 277,913 

Swimming Pool 441,000 407,189 438,505 

Arena 199,000 189,023 186,219 

$ 911,000 $ 875,873 $ 902,637 

Cow Bay Marina $ 255,000 $ 286,846 $ 253,157 

TOTAL GENERAL OPERATING FUND $ 3,166,000 $ 3,095,692 $ 3,085,541 

SOLID WASTE FUND $ 3,204,000 $ 2,973,182 $ 3,051,055 

WATER FUND $ 2,740,000 $ 2,667,401 $ 2,616,665 

SEWER FUND $ 2,555,000 $ 2,516,814 $ 2,437,962 

$ 11,665,000 $ 11,253,089 $ 11,191,223 

Page 17 of25 

City of Prince Rupert-2018 Annual Report so 



90

APPENDIX B: 
Audited Financial Statements (continued ... ) 

Schedule 3 

City of Prince Rupert 

Schedule of Government Transfers 
For The Year Ended December 31 

Unaudited 

2018 Budget 2018 Actual 2017 Actual 

Federal Grant- Conditional 

General Operating Fund 

PRPA- Ferry Dock Repair $ 17,000 $ 66,470 $ 233,028 

PRPA- Doug Kerr Ball Field 41,500 41,500 

PRPA- Highway appurtenance 213,491 

PRPA- Mariners' Park Renewal 28,207 

Water Fund 

Woodworth Dam Design & Construction- PRPA- Joint 118,182 42,500 

Woodworth Dam Design & Construction- FED 3,268,500 316,078 

P3 Water Line & Road Project- Fed 404,000 391,714 1,801,314 

P3 Water Line & Road Project- PRPA Joint 136,696 

$ 3,731,000 $ 756,562 $ 2,634,618 

Provincial Grants 

Unconditional 

General Operating • Small Community $ 376,000 $ 390,229 $ 378,769 

-Traffic Fines 225,000 211,210 221,032 

- Carbon Tax Rebate 87 

Total Unconditional $ 603,000 $ 601,439 $ 599,888 

Conditional 

General Operating Fund 

Victim Services $ 62,000 $ 57,437 $ 54,283 

Tsunami Preparedness Grant 385,000 321,109 

Provincial Emergency Grant 1,250 

Casino Revenue 495,000 541,655 495,013 

Two Percent (2%) Hotel Tax 220,000 241,917 219,788 

Ministry of Natural Resources- Redesign Prince Rupert 220,000 150,000 

NDIT- Economic Development 50,000 48,780 50,000 

NDIT- Business Fac;ade 16,226 

NDIT- Cow Bay Marina 48,000 46,685 43,188 

UBCM· Community Work Fund (Gas Tax) 527,000 476,487 230,814 

UBCM- Asset management 35,000 73,831 9,323 

UBCM- Emergency Social Services Grant 15,000 11,805 

BC Hydro- Engergy Savings incentive 12,770 49,587 

Water Fund 

P3 Water Project Provincial Government portion 404,000 391,714 1,801,314 

Woodworth Dam Design & construction 3,268,500 316,078 

Sewer Fund 

Federal Canadian Municipality- LWMP 19,112 94,154 

Solid Waste Fund 

UBCM- Community Work Fund (Gas Tax) 2,472,000 2.466,000 329,636 
Total Conditional $ 8,201,500 $ 4,860,552 $ 3,709,404 

Total Government Transfer $ 12,535,500 $ 6,218,553 $ 6,943,910 
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APPENDIX B: 
Audited Financial Statements (continued ... ) 

Schedule 4 

City of Prince Rupert 

Schedule of Revenue from Own Sources 
For The Year Ended December 31 

Unaudited 
2018 Budget 2018 Actual 2017 Actual 

Licenses and Permits $ 330,000 $ 999,653 $ 328,425 
Fines 27,000 32,070 26,920 

911 Service Fee 102,000 114,438 111,899 
$ 459,000 $ 1,146,161 $ 467,244 

Miscellaneous revenues 

Actuarial Additions $ $ 125,504 $ 120,447 

Cemetery Care Fund 5,734 4,213 

Miscellaneous - General Fund 232,000 261,113 390,726 

Miscellaneous Grant- Accessibility Lift 41,987 

Miscellaneous Grant- Doug Kerr Ball field 45,500 46,000 

Miscellaneous Grant- Tree Planting 29,500 

Miscellaneous Grant- Mariners' Park Renewal 4,000 205,560 

Penalties and Interest on Taxes 278,552 198,837 

Property Rentals 86,000 85,709 85,273 
Water Meter Rentals 123,000 118,853 113,548 

Sale of Tangible Capital Assets 15,501 144,974 

Total Miscellaneous Revenues $ 486,500 $ 940,966 $ 1,335,065 
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APPENDIX B: 
Audited Financial Statements (continued ... ) 

Schedule 5 

City of Prince Rupert 

Schedule of Expenditure by Objects of Expense 
For The Year Ended December 31 

Unaudited 

2018 Budget 2018 Actual 2017 Actual 

Wages $ 14,236,770 $ 14,619,441 $ 13,842,439 

Benefits 3,446,100 3,350,769 3,295,144 

Professional Fees 1,261,000 827,196 767,582 

Supplies 2,136,500 2,137,638 2,138,153 

Services 2,624,280 3,789,288 2,134,579 

Energy 1,298,200 1,199,649 1,313,931 

Fiscal Expenses 1,327,000 865,592 645,507 

Grants in Aid to Community Partners 1,410,000 1,431,122 1,389,991 

Contracts 5,421,000 5,290,929 5,224,398 

$ 33,160,850 $ 33,511,624 $ 30,751,724 

Capital Purchases & Capital Works (Per budget) 27,530,500 9,903,706 15,171,512 

Wages & Vehicle cost allocated to Capital Works (114,850) (484,986) (677,430) 

Less: 

Investments in Tangible Capital Assets (26,194,000) (11,509,284) {14,294,979) 

Long Term Debt Repayment ~854,000} ~626,937} {467,449} 

Total Expenses (Statement B) $ 33,528,500 $ 30,794,123 $ 30,483,378 
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Purpose 

2015 Rescue Vehicle 
2017 Pumper Truck 

City of Prince Rupert 

Schedule of Equipment I Short Term Financing Debt 
December 31 

New/ 
Renewal 

Amount of 
Issue 

2017 
Balance Additions 

2015 338,904 $ 173,881 

2017 890,000 875,409 

$ 1,049,290 =$===== 
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U1 
U1 

Bylaw 
No. 

General Fund 
3129 George Hills Way/Specified Area 
3201 Cruise Ship Dock 

3333 Airport Upgrade 

Sewer Fund 

3201 Moresby Sewer Upgrade 

Maturity 
No. Date 

75 2021 
94 2025 

127 2034 

94 2025 

City of Prince Rupert 

Schedule of Debenture Debt 
December31 

Amount of Principal 
Issue 2017 Balance Payment 

$ 700,000 $ 197,116 $ (21,170) 
3,133,056 1,532,965 (115,139) 

7,000,000 6,244,647 (235,072) 

$ 7,974,728 $ (371.381) 

$ 346,970 $ 170,329 $ (12,793) 

s 8,145,057 $ {384,1741 
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2017 Accrued 
Actuarial 2018 Actuarial 

$ 2,058 s (25,041) 
12,022 (55,546) 

21,552 (29,352) 

$ 35,632 s (109,939) 

$ 1,336 $ (6,172} 

s 36,968 $ {116,111) 

2018 Accrued 
Actuarial 

$ (2,247) 
(13,316) 

(29,319} 

$ (44,882) 

$ (1,479) 

$ {46,361} 

Schedule 7 

2018 Balance 

$ 150,716 
1,360,986 

5,972,456 

$ 7,484,158 

s 151,221 

$ 7,635.379 ~ 
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APPENDIX B: 
Audited Financial Statements (continued ... ) 

•. 

City of Prince Rupert 

Budget Variance Report General Operating Departments 
For The Year Ended December 31 

2018 2018 B~dge_t 
.. 

REVENUES Budge~ Actual·.· Variance : 

Airport Ferry $ 1,435,000 $ 1,410,834 $ (24,166) 

Cemetery 72,000 91,082 19,082 

Corporate Administration - 9,630 9,630 

Cow Bay Marina 255,000 286,846 31,846 

Development Services 523,000 1,187,640 664,640 

Economic Development 50,000 48,780 (1,220} 

Finance 12,000 15,093 3,093 

Fire Protective Services 2,000 22,252 20,252 

FD911 102,000 114,438 12,438 

Fire Emergency Services 385,000 321,109 (63,891) 

Fiscal Revenues 7,819,000 10,873,934 3,054,934 

Information Technology 1,000 1,200 200 

PW Common Revenues 15,000 54,317 39,317 

PW Engineering 63,000 20,368 (42,632) 

Parks - 28,560 28,560 

RCMP 90,000 111,269 21,269 

Rec. Centre Arena 189,000 179,643 (9,357) 

Rec. Centre Civic Centre 257,000 266,042 9,042 

Rec. Centre Community Services 52,000 29,210 (22,790) 

Rec. Centre Pool 419,000 386,848 (32,152) 

Transit 383,000 325,975 (57,025) 

Victim Services 62,000 57,437 (4,563) 

Watson Island 400,000 - (400,000) 

$ 12,586,000 $ 15,842,507 $ 3,256,507 

Property Taxes 16,407,000 16,220,728 (186,272) 

Injection for Economic Growth- PR Legacy 600,000 422,970 {177,030) 

Capital Works- Funding from PR legacy - 106,447 106,447 

Capital Works- Funding from Grants 165,000 138,019 (26,981) 

Capital Works- Funding from Appr. Surplus 200,000 - (200,000) 

Capital Works- Funding from Reserves 100,000 11,897 (88,103) 

Capital Purchases- Funding from PR Legacy 150,000 200,081 50,081 

Capital Purchases- Funding from Grant 1,007,000 631,723 (375,277) 

Capital Purchases- Funding from Appr. Surplus 10,000 - (10,000) 

Capital Purchases- Funding from Reserves 1,495,000 797,247 (697,753) 

MFA Loan 1,150,000 1,150,000 -
$ 33,870,000 $ 35,521,619 $ 1,651,619 
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Schedule 8-1 

Variance . .. 

' :~.(~) 

(1.68) 

26.50 

-
12.49 

127.08 

(2.44) 

25.78 

N.A 

12.19 

{16.60) 

39.07 

20.00 

262.11 

(67.67) 

-
23.63 

(4.95) 

3.52 

(43.83) 

(7.67) 

(14.89) 

(7.36) 

(100.00} 

25.87 

(1.14) 

(29.51) 

N.A 

(16.35) 

(100.00) 

{88.10) 

33.39 

(37.27) 

(100.00} 

(46.67) 

-
4.88 

56 
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APPENDIX B: 
Audited Financial Statements (continued ... ) 

City of Prince Rupert 

Budget Variance Report General Operating Departments 
For The Year Ended December 31 

: ~ :::f;>(P~NDITURES 

Airport Ferry 

Cemetery 

Civic Properties 

Corporate Administration 

Cow Bay Marina 

Development Services 

Economic Development 

FD911 

FD Fire Protective Services 

FD Emergency Measures 

Finance 

Finance Cost Allocation 

Fiscal Expenditures 

Governance 

Grants 

Information Technology 

Parks 

PW Engineering 

PW Common Costs 

Allocation of Common Cost 

PWVehicles 

PW Net Vehicle Cost & Allocation 

RCMP 

Rec. Centre Arena 

Rec. Centre Civic Centre 

Rec. Centre Community Services 

Rec. Centre Pool 

Roads 

Transit 

Victim Services 

Watson Island 

Transfer to Reserves 

Capital Purchases 

Capital Works 

Surplus/( Deficit) 

City of Prince Rupert-2018 Annual Report 

$ 

2018 

2,588,000 

238,000 

356,000 

1,000,000 

207,000 

1,065,000 

130,000 

535,000 

2,950,000 

418,000 

794,000 

(359,000) 

2,885,000 

305,000 

1,410,000 

530,000 

967,000 

441,000 

3,708,000 

(3, 708,000) 

1,274,000 

(1,274,000) 

5,336,000 

399,000 

1,851,000 

52,000 

1,256,000 

2,017,000 

880,000 

119,000 

400,000 

95,000 

4,010,000 

995,000 

$ 33,870,000 $ 

$ - $ 
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2018 

$ 2,587,592 $ 
275,444 

287,127 

992,255 

209,481 

938,950 

134,898 

537,150 

3,195,627 

359,792 

846,945 

{359,000) 

2,499,890 

279,661 

1,431,122 

521,495 

984,656 

365,573 

3,846,571 

(3,885,870) 

1,334,087 

(1,343,161) 

5,281,790 

418,089 

1,875,706 

18,485 

1,241,672 

2,055,157 

818,175 

87,707 

1,635,686 

141,037 

3,218,741 

772,971 

33,605,501 $ 
1,916,118 $ 

~~d~et 
.Va.ri~oce 

408 

(37,444} 

68,873 

7,745 

(2,481) 

126,050 

(4,898} 

(2,150) 

(245,627) 

58,208 

(52,945) 

385,110 

25,339 

(21,122) 

8,505 

(17,656) 

75,427 

(138,571) 

177,870 

(60,087) 

69,161 

54,210 

(19,089) 

(24,706) 

33,515 

14,328 

(38,157) 

61,825 

31,293 

(1,235,686) 

(46,037) 

791,259 

222,029 

264,499 

1,916,118 

Schedule 8-2 

Variance 
(%) :.' 

0.02 

(15.73) 

19.35 

0.77 

(1.20) 

11.84 

(3.77) 

{0.40) 

{8.33) 

13.93 

(6.67) 

13.35 

8.31 

(1.50) 

1.60 

(1.83) 

17.10 

{3.74) 

(4.80) 

(4.72) 

(5.43) 

1.02 

(4.78) 

{1.33) 

64.45 

1.14 

(1.89) 

7.03 

26.30 

{308.92) 

(48.46} 

19.73 

22.31 

0.78 
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APPENDIX B: 
Audited Financial Statements (continued ... ) 

UTILITIES 

Sewer 

Revenues 

Capital Works- Grants 

Capital Works 

Net Revenue 

Expenditures 
Surplus /(Deficit) 

Water 

Revenues 

Capital works- Grants 

Capital Works- PR legacy 

Capital Works- PRPA 

Capital Works- MFA Debenture 

Capita Works- Reseves 

Capital Works 

Net Revenue 

Expenditures 

Surplus/( Deficit) 

Solid Waste 

Revenues 

City of Prince Rupert 

Budget Variance Report of Utilities 
For The Year Ended December 31 

2018 2018 
Budget Actual 

$ 2,504,000 $ 2,485,687 

6,000 -
(951,000) (438,508) 

$ 1,559,000 $ 2,047,179 

1,559,000 1,037,722 

$ - $ 1,009.457 

$ 2,808,000 $ 2,733,047 

7,365,000 783.428 

550,000 550,000 

- -
8,613,000 254,878 

30,000 33,845 

{l7,258,000J (2,323,626' 

$ 2,108,000 $ 2,031,572 

2,108,000 1,893,426 

$ - $ 138,146 

$ 3,140,000 $ 2,913,708 

Capital Works- Appropriated Surplus 150,000 -
Capital Works- Accruals 1,030,000 -
Capital Works- Gas Tax 2,466,000 2,466,000 

Capital Works- Grants 7,500 -
Capital Works (4,366,500) (3,169,406) 

Net Revenue $ 2,427,000 $ 2,210,302 

Expenditures 2,427,000 2,149,795 

Surplus /(Deficit) $ - $ 60,507 
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Budget 

Variance 

$ (18,313) 

(6,000) 

512,492 

$ 488,179 

521,278 

$ 1,009,457 

$ (74,953) 

(6,581,572) 

-
254,878 

(8,358,122) 

3,845 

14,934,374 

$ 178,450 

214,574 

$ 138,146 

$ (226,292) 

(150,000} 

(1,030,000) 

-
{7,500) 

1,197,094 

$ (216,698) 

277,205 

$ 60,507 

Schedule 8-3 

Variance 

% 

(0.73) 

(100.00) 

(53.89) 

31.31 

33.44 

-

{2.67) 

(89.36) 

-
N.A. 

(97.04) 

12.82 

(86.54) 

8.47 

10.18 

-

(7.21) 

(100.00) 

(100.00) 

-
(100.00) 

(27.42) 

(8.93) 

11.42 

-
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APPENDIX(: 
Permissive Tax Exemptions 

Registered Owner/ Occupier Identity/ Facility 
Est. Tax Exemption based 

on 2018 Rates 

Places of Worshi~ & Senior Housing (Exclude Statuto~ Exemgt Portion) 

Church of Jesus Christ of Latter Day Saints Church $ 541.83 

Cornerstone Mennonite Brethren Church 349.81 

Fellowship Baptist Church 353.14 

First Presbyterian Church 406.85 

The Salvation Army 401.14 

Harvest Time United Pentecostal Church 136.41 

Indo-Canadian Sikh Association Temple 129.75 

Jehovah's Witnesses Kingdom Hall 1,335.56 

Jehovah's Witnesses Kingdom Hall Parking Lot 190.11 

Prince Rupert Church of Christ Church 912.55 

Prince Rupert Native Revival Centre 306.08 

Prince Rupert Pentecostal Tabernacle 452.00 

Prince Rupert Sikh Missionary Society Temple 489.55 

United Church of Canada 38.50 

United Church of Canada (parking lot) 385.81 

United Church of Canada (parking lot) 385.81 

Kaien Senior Citizen's Housing 67.75 

Prince Rupert Senior Citizen's Housing Society 2,181.17 

Sub-total Places of Worship & Senior Housing $ 9,063.82 

Other Progerties 

Roman Catholic Annunciation School $ 27,492.35 

Roman Catholic Annunciation School Playground 3,494.17 

Roman Catholic Annunciation School Gym 3,753.81 

Cultural Dance Centre & Carving House 14,364.93 

Jim Pattison Ind. Ltd (Canfisco Municipal Boat Launch Facility) 5,415.97 

Museum of Northern BC 44,672.03 

Prince Rupert Performing Arts Centre Society 125,547.58 

Prince Rupert Golf Society 21,266.24 

Prince Rupert Golf Society 1,214.83 

Prince Rupert Golf Society 186.79 

Prince Rupert Golf Society 59.89 

Prince Rupert Racquet Association 1,606.47 

School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) (Pacific Coast School) 5,716.86 

School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) (Pacific Coast School) 99.49 

BC Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals 2,159.59 

BC Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals 10,336.93 

BC Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals 1,322.45 

Prince Rupert Loyal Order of Moose/Moose Lodge 705.80 

Prince Rupert Loyal Order of Moose/Moose Lodge 2,717.69 

Prince Rupert Salmon Enhancement Society 276.62 

Prince Rupert Curling Club 2,290.88 

Prince Rupert Rod & Gun Club 1,164.93 
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APPENDIXC: 
Permissive Tax Exemptions (continued ... ) 

Cedar Road Aboriginal Justice Program Society 2,293.50 

Friendship House Association of Prince Rupert 6,903.67 

Kaien Island Daycare Services Family Resource Centre 1,366.35 

Prince Rupert Senior Centre Association 1,055.14 

Prince Rupert Association for Community living 376.21 

Prince Rupert Community Enrichment Society 1,288.03 

The Royal Canadian legion Branch 27 (Only area used by legion) 2,124.53 

Navy league Prince Rupert Branch 752.38 

Kaien Island Trail Enhancement and Recreation Society 436.77 

Sub-total other Properties $ 292,462.88 

Estimated Total Permissive Property Tax Exemptions $ 301,526.70 
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APPENDIX D: 
Community Enhancement Grant Report 

City of Prince Rupert 

Statement of Financial Information 

Schedule of Grants or contributions 

For the Year Ending December 31, 2018 

Arts Council 
Halloween Fest (In kind) 
Lester Centre of the Arts 
Kwinitsa Station Museum 
Museum of Northern BC 
National Aboriginal Day (In kind) 
Navy League of Canada 
Prince Rupert Library 

Prince Rupert Library Vested Benefit 
Racquet Association 
SPCA 
Special Events Society 
Special Events Society (In kind) 
Wildlife Rehab Shelter 
Tourism Prince Rupert- Visitors' Info 
Centre 

Tourism Prince Rupert (Hotel Tax 
Prince Rupert Golf Society 

PR Golf Club Society - Capital 
Prince Rupert Skating Club 

Kaien Island Trail Enhancement 

$ 10,000 
4,013 

125,250 
15,000 

133,112 
1,304 
9,000 

650,000 

9,000 
8,500 

25,000 
20,000 
11,234 
6,000 

16,000 

241,917 
90,000 
45,829 

1,500 

7,000 

950 
513 

AFFNO Sugar Shack 

GunsNHosesCharityGame(ln~n~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Total $ 1,431,122 
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APPENDIX E: 
City Contact Information 

City of Prince Rupert 
424 3rd Avenue West 
Prince Rupert1 BC 
Canada V8J ~L7 

Tel: 250-627-~78~ 
Fax: 250-627-0999 

Website: www.princerupert.ca 

Office Hours 
9:30am to 4:30pm 
Monday through Friday 

Robert Long, City Manager 
250 627 093~ 
robert.long@princerupert.ca 

Corinne Born ben, CA1 Chief Financial Officer 
250 627 0935 
corinne.bomben@princerupert.ca 

Richard Pucci1 Operations Manager 
250 627 0956 
r ichard .pucci@princerupert.ca 

City of Prince Rupert- 2018 Annual Report 

City Services 

Public Works 
Water/Sewer/ Roads/Parks: (250) 624-6795 
Garbage Collection/Landfill: (250) 624-5482 
Streetlight Repair Reporting: (250) 627-0988 

Engineering 
General Office Line: (250) 627-0950 
Can call fo r: 
• Cemetery Arrangements 
• Permits (City Property) 
• Blasting Permits 

Emergency Lines 
After Hours: (250) 624-3000 
Weekends: (250) 624-~037 (or 624-3000) 

62 




